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PROCEEDTINGS
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CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Good morning. Thank you for your
attendance at this Joint Interim Hearing with the Senate Select
Committee on Substance Abuse and the Assembly Select Committee on
Youth and Drug Abuse Prevention.

The purpose for the hearings, you know, is to establish
a five~year Master Plan aimed at reducing substance abuse in‘
California.

We have with us at this particular moment Senator Becky
Morgan, a member of the Senate Select Committee, and we are
expecting Assembly members to be joining us a bit later this
morning.

We've also asked to be with us at this hearing
individuals who are very active in playing leadership roles
throughout the State in the area of substance abuse. We have Mr.
Rich Bayquen, who is the Chief Deputy Director of the Department
of Alcochol and Drug Programs, representing Mr. Chauncey Veatch,
the Director. We have Mr. Albert Howenstein, Jr., who is the
Executive Director of the Office of Criminal Justice Planning;
Ms. Carol Stein, who is a member of the Board of Directors of
Californians for Drug Free Youth; also Ms. Sharon Rose, the
Legislative Chair of that organization; Mr. Troy Fox, Chairman of
the Legislative Committee of the California County Alcohol
Program Administrators Association; Mr. George Feicht,
Legislative Chair for the California County Drug Program

Administrators Association; and Mr. Dennis Meyers, Legislative
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Advocate for the California School Boards Association. We
welcome them.
The program, the testimony and the witnesses are going

to be provided twenty minutes. We're going to try to conduct our

t business per witnesses twenty minutes: ten minutes of testimony,

then ten minutes of questions from the members of the Legislature
or members of our panel who are with us today.

I'd like ﬁo make a brief opening statement, and then ask
Senator Morgan if she has any additional comments she would like
tc make, then proceed to our witnesses.

After almost four years of service as Chairman of the

1Senate Select Committee on Substance Abuse, I am convinced that

| the alcohol and drug problems in California have reached epidemic

proportions. The alarming statistics clearly substantiate my
belief. For example, approximately 2,400 Californians will die
this year in alcohol-related accidents, and there will be over
65,000 alcohol-related traffic injuries. This will occur despite
approximately 340,000 misdemeanor arrests and 7,300 felony
arrests for personsVdriving while intoxicated.

Furthermore, a 1985 Department of Alcohol and Drug

| Programs study revealed that there are approximately 991,000

active daily drug abusers in California of which 27 percent use
heroin. 1In addition, it is conservatively estimated that 3.8
percent of’‘all Californians will abuse drugs to the degree that
services are needed. All of us here today can attest to the fact
that no segment of society, rich or poor, white or black, is free

from the scourges of substance abuse.
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With a social and economic price tag of $17.6 billion
annually to California, as well as the emotional and physical
impact on developing minds and bodies of our young people, we
must take a fresh look at these alarming statistics. With
insufficient resources to fully address the drug and alcchol
abuse problem, I strongly believe it is imperative that all
existing services and resources are coordinated and that all
unnecessary duplication is eliminated. It is clear that if the
substance abuse problem is to be solved, a comprehensive and
cooperative effort must be made at every level: national, state,
community, school, and most importantly in the home.

In this regard, the Senate Select Committee held a
hearing last November to determine the need for a Master Plan to
reduce drug and alcohol abuse in California. Those who testified
at this hearing overwhelmingly supported the development of a
five-year Master Plan.

The two areas most frequently addressed by the
participants underlining the need for a long-range plan were:

One, the lack of coordination among service providers at
the state and local levels; and

Two, the unnecessary duplicatioﬁ of effort in some areas
with a lack of resources for other needed services.

Earlier this year, I introduced Senate Bill 1369 to
establish an advisory committee of experts responsible for the
Master Plan development. The legislation culminated in numerous

meetings with State and local government officials and community

service representatives.
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Unfortunately, I was informed of the Administration's

. opposition to my measure on the basis that it created another

! level of bureaucracy. In response, I decided to utilize existing
Select Committee resources to accomplish the same purpose.
Therefore, I scheduled these hearings for the purpose of
identifying the necessary components of a Master Plan.

The development of a five-year Master Plan is a major
task that if handled properly could effectively use precious

resources and significantly reduce the tragedies of substance

|abuse. As I view the Master Plan, it is an attempt to bring

together disjointed efforts throughout California. Further, it

i
1
|
i
i
1
1

is an attempt to coordinate these resources so that we are not
1
hdupllcatlng efforts and thereby insuring that we get a higher

Hquallty of service for the taxpayer's dollar.

Specifically, the Master Plan is an attempt to set goals
as to what we should accomplish over the next five years, and
really therefore an attempt to bring it all together in a
coordinated manner which prov1des a statewide network of
agenciés, both nonprofit as well as governmental, to maximize and

most effectively use the resources invested in this tremendous

undertaking.
; .~ Because of the broad spectrum of iséues which need to be
addressed in the Master Plan, Assemblyman Steve Clute and I have
requested that hearing participants direct their testimony by
responding to the following questions:

One, what do you perceive as the necessary components,

goals if you will, of a Master Plan?
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Two, based upon your experience, what changes could be
made to more effectively utilize the existing and potential
future resources available for substance abuse services?

And three, what role can professionals in your arena
play in the implementation of the Master Plan?

I am most confident that with the valuable assistance
provided by each expert witness who will testify before us today,
tomorrow in San Diego, and on Wednesday in Orange County, we will
have the necessary components to set forth on our task of writing
legislation that will ultimately produce a Master Plan to attach
this deadly disease of substance abuse in California.

Senator Morgan, we welcome you here and we appreciate
the fact that you came to us and shared an interest in the field
of substance abuse. We particularly appreciate you taking your
valuable time to join us in this interim hearing.

Perhaps you have a statement?

SENATOR MORGAN: Just very, very brief, Sénator.

I think the chairmanship which you'Ve undertaken for
this project is an important one. I asked to be on the Committee
because of the background that I have. As a sbhool board member,
I saw what was happening to our high school students and younger.
I got involved in drug and alcohol abuse and then became a county
supervisor, saw the number of cases that were in our children's
shelters, in our juvenile agencies, and particularly in our adult
jails very much relate in one way or another to drug or alcohol
abuse, whether it wés the use, or because of the burglary that

took place to support a habit, or in some way a connection with a
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drug or alcohol abuse. I just see the damage that is done to our

i

' people and our society with this involvement.

I appreciate the opportunity to participate with you on

the Committee and commend you for trying to put together some

kind of plan to address the problem.

I CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you very much.

Our first witness is Mr. Tom Peters, or I should say Dr.
Tom Peters, who is the Associate Director of Health for the San
Francisco Department of Public Health, representing Mayor
Feinstein.

Mr. Peters.

| DR. CLARK: Unfortunately, Dr. Peters called in from his
|

ﬁcar phone and indicated that he's on his way. Since we've

. collaborated ~- my name 1is Dr. Wayne Clark. I'm the Director of

it
i
it

che Substance Abuse Services for the City and County.

| On behalf of the Mayor and the Department of Public
‘Health, we welcome you here. The Mayor, unfortunately, couldn't
make it. Dr. Peters is on his way, and these are his remarks.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you, Dr. Clark.

DR. CLARK: BAlcohol and drug related problems have a

.Significant impact upon the social, health and legal institutions
;in San Francisco. We see this problem in our jails, where 40-60
‘percent of misdemeanor arrests are alcohol or drug related. Our
§hospita1 emergency rooms personnel tell us that 20-50 percent of
?hospital admissions are alcohol or drug related. Our welfare
isystems and homeless programs indicate that 25-65 percent of

their clients are as a result of alcohol or drug problems.
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To us the data is conclusive. This city, this state and
nation have a significant substance abuse problem.

Your staff requested that I direct our comments to
several questions regarding California's Master Plan for
reduction of substance abuse problems. First they asked what
would be the necessary components or goals of a Master Plan.

I think they can be stated guite succinctly:
prevention, prevention and prevention. The health of our cities,
our state and our nation can only be improved if we set up
strategies and tactics to reduce the deleterious consequences of
alcohol and drug problems in our society and in our cities.

Let me give a few examples to you how substance abuse
prevention strategies éan impact the reduction of these societal
problems. Recently one of our supervisors and several other
communities in the State have looked at the fetal alcohol
syndrome, which is now the third leading cause of Down's Syndrome
in this country. As you know, developmentally disabled citizens
become a lifelong cost to our society. Prevention of fetal
alcohol syndrome can impact the prevalence of developmental
disabilities in our state and significantly reduce the health
care costs that are associated with their care. Substance abuse
prevention efforts, designed to reduce fetal alcochol syndrome,
can help women have healthy babies.

Another example of how substance abuse intervention can
prevent health-related consequences is certainly, and San
Francisco feels this most strongly, is the case of AIDS. San

Francisco is seriously impacted by the AIDS epidemic. Indeed,
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Cthis mission which we

40,000 of ocur citizens are estimated to be infected. Oux

 Department of Public Health is aggressively employing primary,

secondary, and tertiary intervention activity to attempt to blunt
the next wave of the AIDS epidemic, San Francisco initiated a

comprehensive plan of outreach training, research, counseling,

and indeed even treatment for the prevention of substance

abuse-related HIV infection.

We look forward to the State of California to help us in

> us to hold the rate of

,C:Lx

infection steady until a vaccine can be developed. We feel that

1]

' substance abuse prevention, education and counseling is a
'mechanism to prevent the spread of RIDS. Substance abuse

i treatment ~- methadone programs, residential treatment programns,

programs that will get I.V. drug users ¢ff needles and continuing

‘to transmit the disease -- is an important part of the substance

(resider

percent of the clients in that program have

labuse prevention area which could help ocur health care

icensaq ences, such as AIDS, in our society.

‘abuse interventions have a dramatic impact on the health, social,

tand legal conseguences we see. Briefly, I would point to a new

T 1 r g

iv 111 substance

Y
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abuser, duly diagnosed, that we have established in San

&
3
»
<f>
o
0

Francisco. Also, scent academy,

called our Walter House Program, for mentally 111l children who

rare despondent but frequently stoned all the time, We see 80

(o

iual problems of

| . . . : e e
isubstance abuse/mental illness. Both efforts will have an impact
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on our acute psychiatric hospitalizations and other costs to our
Medi-Cal and Medicaid systems in California.

We have many other joint efforts with our school systems
which we feel keep our kids in school and improve the quality of
our education system. Again, it isn't substance abuse
intervention; it's prevention for other problems in other
institutions. We see the list as seemingly endless, and a five-
year plan is an excellent start.

The second area you asked us to address is to recommend
changes which could be made to more effectively utilize existing
and potential resources for substance abuse services.

First, the State should not retreat from funding
communities at their existing levels. San Francisco is
significantly impacted by substance abuse problems. It's
underfunded. We have waiting lists at every single program.
There should be no retreat from existing funding levels in any
community in the State of California.

We feel there is no county in this State that has too

much State funding for alcohol and drug problems. Instead, as

I'11 mention later, the State should provide additional resources
for all California communities.

We also feel that other counties in the State should
take the lead from San Francisco in creating what we've
determined as local funding sources for substance abuse programs.
Here again we have several examples. The bottom line will show
that San Francisco is supplying significant local revenues to our

substance abuse programs, sometimes 200 percent higher than other
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| counties; indeed, 30 percent of the substance abuse budget in San
| Francisco, which is considered high compared to other counties

“with local funding.

In addition to this general fund commitment, the Mavor

has begun to insitruct drug seizure funds to be used for substance

| abuse prevention and treatment efforts. She just recently

instructed that $200,000 be set up to establish a new program for
youth and services in a neighborhood that is under-served.

Other local efforts using existing resources include

imerging alcochol and drug programming into a substance abuse

tdivision. San Francisco did this several -- in 1979. Several

other communities in Northern California and Southern California

| have done this also, which has increased seyvice accessibility to

| at-risk populations.

Alsco, we feel our pioneering dual diagnosis programs
assist in coordinating our mental health services and our
substance abuse programs. And indeed, when we talk about
prevention of substance abuse issues, and the community
psychiatry people talk about their apprcoaches to preventing
mental health problems, we find a great deal of parallel in our
joint efforts at prevention.

A final example we feel very proud of is our nationally

honored Sober Hotel Program, which merges efforts of our city's

Housing, Economic Development and Criminal Justice programs to

ideal with the complex problem of the homeless substance abusers.
. In San Francisco, we feel we have shown that interdepartmental

local efforts can more effectively utilize existing resocurces.
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Yet we feel that that's not enough. New State funds and
federal funding is also needed. There's too much to do for just
the municipalities to shoulder for the responsibility of alcohol
and drug problems. California should have its own war on drugs
and match dollar-for-dollar, and maybe even double  the dollar
efforts, of the federal initiative. New revenues could come from
integrated sources such as the initiative to create a nickel a
drink tax, which could be earmarked for alcohol and drug
programming. This users' tax could bring hundreds of millions of
dollars to implement the intent of the five-year plan that you
have proposed. Merging departmental activities, enlightened
health and social programming, are essential methods, we feel,
for effective utilization of existing resources. But creating
new State and federal funding sources are also extremely
necessary.

The last question you asked for our city to address is
what role a professional can play in the implementation of such a
Master Plan.

I'm speaking for the Health Department. We've been
discussing this extensively. The AIDS epidemic has had a
profound impact on our city. We in San Francisco have already
begun to understand the necessity of cooperative collegiate
working relationships, coordinated programming, and generally
speaking the need for professionals to rise above our normal
bureaucratic roles and responsibilities, and instead to roll up
our sleeves and go back to the negotiating table, 6r go back to
the table where we're discussing joint efforts, and develop

effective health, welfare, and social services.
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conseguences,

any support we can in San Francisco for

L important.

your testimony.

| Senator Morgan, a gquestion?

| witnesses, but one deals with, you said

‘has some responsibility.

Is there an age that's crucial

ieffort?

|

i
|
ISenior Health Services in San Francisco.

distributing medications, especially if

i S0, we don't feel that there's

ithat concentrating our efforts on youth

12

In the case of alcohol and drug problems, merging
substance abuse programs and coordinating our professional
' efforts will result, we feel, in the collegiality needed to

reduce substance abuse and the health-related social and legal

Thank you for your attention to this matter. We'll give

a five-year Master Plan.

We feel, as mentioned initially, that prevention is extremely

I CHAIRMAN SEYMQOUR: Dr. Clark, thank you very much for

% SENATOR MORGAN: It's one I might be asking several

"oprevention, prevention,

‘prevention.” That starts with our schools, for which the State
P

to start that prevention

DR. CLARK: UWNo, we have prevention efforts for our

We find a situation

lwhere prescribed medications for seniors and alcohoel don't mix
iquite the same way they do when we're in our twenties and in our
teens. So we need to educate pharmacists on more effective

medication policies on how to instruct their clients on better

yvou're using alcohol.
an age limit. We think

is important, but we know
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that there's a late onset of alcohol problems in our society, and
prevention of those problems, those populations, is important.

I think especially as our Baby Boom generation grows
older, the potential problems of retirement and leisure time for
our senior citizens will be a major issue that we'll be creating
for our society. And I think that prevention efforts there, with
legislative policies that will assist seniors to be active, to be
involved in nonsubstance abuse activities, is important.

SENATOR MORGAN: I was fascinated by your answer to the
question. I always associate the other end of the spectrum, and
you've dealt with, obviously, what's on your mind ~- the older
generation -- which I think is very valid.

I was thinking more in the elementary schools where many
of us think that fourth grade may be even too late at this point,
and parents and others are very resistant to that, saying: Don't
expose my kinds to eduéational drug programs or alcohol issues
that young.

DR. CLARK: Well again, we would use our experience with
the AIDS epidemic. We :feel that education regarding sex and
drugs is something that should start at the earliest of ages to
assist our youth in making better and appropriate judgments
regarding their behavior.

SENATOR MORGAN: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Any questions from the members of our
panel? Yes, Mr. Howenstein.

MR. HOWENSTEIN: I have one question, Dr. Clark.
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How are you bringing together your drug and alcohol

i programs? I have some understanding that historically they've

' been strongly separated. Could you describe how you're bringing

. them together in San Francisco?

i DR. CLARK: Sure. Administratively, we made a division
‘of Substance Abuse Services, and through our contracting process
%~— most of our contracts are with community-based nonprofit

| organizations -- we have established certain regulations that
require them to identify drug problems in their alcohol programs
and identify alcohol problems in their drug programs. We'wve had
‘historical relationships. |

We have guarterly meetings amongst the two groups. If

they're separate funding, they're separate from the alcochol and

i
i

i «
Il drug programs. We also coordinate all of our services within one

i
fadministrative office.

3 I think, though, that one of the most helpful is that as
|

new funding becomes available, we require them to be a Substance

| V
i Abuse program. And we require them to be involved in

i

gdetoxification to detoxify for all substances, not just for a
gspecific, for example, alcohol or heropin.
| CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Other guestions of Dr. Clark? I have
ione guestion for you. |

You made mention of the fact that you were able to merge
alcochol and drugs into a Substance Abuse. I marvel at that.

My personal experience has been that there are alcohol

people, then there are drug people.

DR. CLARK: Sometimes they're the same people.
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CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: But they have seemed to be in
divergent directions, sometimes not even recognizing the other
exists. Every time I've asked that question of why don't we just
treat substance abuse as substance. abuse, I find: Well, John,
historically that just doesn't occur. You have your alcohol
people, and you have your drug people.

I think to be effective what you've accomplished is most
comméndable. I just wondered how you did it?

DR. CLARKf Well part of it is a policy-making decision
in regards to the city and county in our health policies. And
aléo, it is a recognition of the nature of the clients coming
into those programs, that Better Living Through Chemistry is what
our clients are striving to.

(Laughter.)

DR. CLARK: This kind of drug, or that kind of drug, or
that kind of drug; they're using a variety. Poly drug abuse is
very much a part of what's going on.

We also feel that through the economy that has been
required since the late '70s, that we didn't think that we would
expand as rapidly as we felt the need demanded, and so we wanted
to assure that we could, in each new program effort, expand so
that we could reach as large a section of the population as
possible.

I think if ydu really take a look throughout the State,
most of the counties have substance abuse programs. They've

merged alcohol and drug.
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i CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: I see a negative shaking of the head
fby Mr. Jack Dugan, who has joined us representing the Attorney

i
i
|

' General.

Jack,‘you don't find thatito be true?

MR. DUGAN: No. They're intellectually separated,
?physically Separated. '

DR. CLARK: Well, we work on that. I think you're right
in the sense that there is a great deal of divefsity in the
field, and I think that some of my colleagues will say that
merging alcohol and drug abuse treatment would be detrimental.
We've found that it's not harmful to either segment in San
3Francisco. Several other communities in the Bay Area have also
| attempted it and done it so successfully.

It doesn't mean that every time you have a client that
has an alcohol problem or a drug problem that you're going to
have to have a program that fits perfectly. But I think at the
same time iﬁ's an intellectual leap I think we're going to be
making as wé get into the '90s. Science fiction, the new drugs
‘that are coming down the pike make the current irrelevant, and
we're going to be having much more variety of substances use and
abuse to regulate. I think we need to be on top of that across
che board.
| CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you very much.

Our next witness 1s the Honorable Wilmont Sweeney, Judge

i
I
i

of the Alameda County Juvenile Court.

Judge Sweeney, thank you for being with us today.
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JUDGE SWEENEY: Thank you, Senator, Members of the
Committee, for inviting me to participate at this hearing.

I couldn't agree more with the previous speaker, who
indicates that the principal problem, or rather the principal
component of a five-year Master Plan ought to be triple
prevention, the business that he speaks of.

I'm speaking strictly as a juvenile court judge and the
problems that I see in my county. And'the‘prinéipal problem that
I see in my county at this time, not throughout the county but in
significantly large segments of‘it, is the tremendous increase in
the use of cocaine. It's the drug of choice. It happens to be
my county prefers cocaine to whatever else some other counties
prefer.

I have two real major recommendations to make that ought
to be included in the program, and they're certainly not new from
what I've read and what I've heard. I mean prevention in the
traditional sense. I believe additional steps ought to be taken
to prevent the stuff from being distributed into the
neighborhoods where it's béing distributed.

I have found that there is a tremendous increase in the
number of young people who are dealing, distributing, and using
drugs. As I say, it's essentially cocaine in Alameda Cbunty.
They are not the ones who are bringing the stuff into the
neighborhoods. We know that other people are bringing it in. We
know that in large measure it's the adults who are bringing it
in, passing it out to the youngsters to distribute, and inducing
the youngsters to get hooked on it so then they have a need for

remedial services that need to be provided.
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S0, I'm really speaking more to law enforcement efforts

than anything else. We have cooperation between the local

government and state government and federal government in the law
enforcement agencies to try to get the big dealers, the big guys

who bring the stuff in, pass it out to the smaller dealers in the

'neighborhocds.

But the fact that it is increasing, the way it is
increasing in my county, indicates quite clearly to me that those
efforts are not enough. No matter how much is being spent now,
how much time is being devoted now, not enough is being done
because the neighborhoods are being destroyed, families are being
destroyed, kids are being destroyed by this influx of this stuff.
Kids are dropping out of school because they can make easy money

selling drugs, getting hooked on the stuff, and then continuing

éto sell the drugs because they feel they've got to do it in order

>to make the money to get the drugs. They keep doing it. Then

they become a drag on the rest of us.

The law enforcement people to whom I talk =-- I talked to
our local people because those are the ones to whom I have the
greatest access =-- they indicaté that they don't have the
resources to do the job that needs to be dohe. They point out
that it is tremendously expensive, for example, to maintain
surveillance over somebody whom they feel is a major drug dealer,
or anybody; to watch somebody 24 hours a day, seven days a week.
They:inaicate that they simply do not have the funds to provide

that kind of surveillance,
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It appears to me that that kind of surveillance and
intervention is going to be absolutely necessary if we're going
to prevent the influx of this stuff into the neighborhoods, where
it is now. It's really destroying the neighborhoods. I mean
that literally. At least 80 percent of the cases that come into
my juvenile court now involve drugs. I've indicated the major
drug of choice is cocaine at this time. They're either coming in
for possession, for possession for sale, or actual sales. They
start out at the lowest teens and go up to age 17, which is below
age 18, where we stop.

We get young people who come in as witnesses and
otherwise who are pre-teens, who are thoroughly conversant with
the way the operation works. They come in; they know who the
dealers are; they know how the stuff sells; they know what the
market price is and everything.

We've got families who come in. I get parents who come
into the courtroom to testify on behalf of their kids. - Their
kids have been busted for possession or sale of cocaine. 1In the
course of the arrest, they are searched; they are found to have
large sums of money on them. Maybe their families are on
welfare, poor families, not very affluent families. And they may
have one, to three, to five, to six or seven hundred dollars; I
had one with $6,000 on his person. I get parénts who come in
there who act as though they forget that they are parents, and
the harm that they are causing to their children. They come in
and testify time and time again, after first swearing to tell the

truth, that they gave the kid this money to do something with;
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gave them money to go pay the utility bill, or buy some clothes,

| to do this, that, or the other thing.

And I have to sit up there, totally impartial, while

- they tell these damn lies and listen to all this stuff. They

never think of what they're doing to their kids. They are
backing up the kids in what the kids are doing. They're helping
to destroy their own child.

We have developing, in some of these areas that the

‘families are coming here, what I tend to think of as a cottage

industry, where everybody in the family, even the extended
family, know what's going on. We get the police who are breaking
into houses because they've got adequate cause to believe there's

drugs there. They find drugs and money scattered all over the

'kitchen table. Everybody is sitting around, communicating with

each other, socializing and so forth -- little kids, big kids,
neighbors -- everybody knows what's happening. They're in there
becaﬁse somebody has gone up and made arrangements to buy some
drugs, and the police have adequate cause to go in.

Witnesses come in, children who come in, and testify,
and they treat it as though it's hothing; as though they were
mékinq dolls to sell somewhere else.

We have other families who come in where the people are

icrying the blues about what are they going to do about their

lchildren. What are they going to do about this drug business.

They tell me: Judge, I can't do anything; there's drugs all
around us all in the neighborhood. They can't walk from home. to

school without running into this stuff, so there's really no way
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that I can keep them away from it, totally away from it, and I
don't know what to do. |

I have families come in who say: I have moved from one
neighborhood to another in order to get away from this stuff, and
I just can't move anymore. I don't have that kind of money; I
don't have those kinds of means.

I said to a member of this panel that I can't emphasize
enough the need to pu£ in whatever resources need to be put in so
that the job that only policing agencies can do can be done by
them. We can't expect neighborhoods to go out and collar drug
dealers, certainly not these big ones. Somebody needs to have
24~hour surveillance, we can get it.

Policemen will tell me and tell you if you ask them that
they can go into the neighborhoods and, based upon their
experiences, they know who the big dealers are. They know them
by name, rank, serial number, and telephone number, and address.
But they say: We can't arrest them as often and fast as we want
to because we don't have enough evidence to justify a conviction
when it comes before the court. So it takes time. It takes many
months, sometimes it takes years before they're able to do that.
Then somebody else springs up and they've got to go through the
whole thing again.

The principal thing appears to me to be a lack of
resources that's causing them to be so slow and unable to do the
job that they need to do. Many people in the neighborhoods, most
of them I think, are opposed to the influx of drugs in their

neighborhoods. Yet people who call in all the time, the police
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' refer them, many of them, as refused callers. They will call in

to report that somebody's in the neighborhood on the corner who's

selling this stuff, wearing so and so, and doing it right now.

¢ "No, I will not give you my name, and I will not be a witness. I

will not involve myself any further in this. I'm just telling
you what it is."”

We have marches; we have all kinds of things organized

' by churches, but that's not enoﬁgh.

The second thing that I think ought to be involved in

the Master Plan is a provision whereby the State assist the local
§§governments, the local communities, to organize coordinated

. approaches whereby they can prevent the influx of the stuff into

the neighborhoods, because it's killing the kids. It's not

simply a matter of making a few bucks, and it's not simply a

'matter of anything else that's simple. They blow each other

away, too. I mean literally. We get kids who are shooting each

other in the heads about drugs, and any other parts of the body.

! They shoot into homes. They don't have the experience that you

'and I have as adults. They don't know when to shoot somebody and

when not to shoot somebody, so'they just shoot people

;irrespectively, whether there's good cause to or not.

Neighborhoods need to be given some assistance in

| housing and to coordinate their approaches to fight this mess. I

think they need to get that from the State government, through

i local government also.

I take the view, I'm sure all of you would agree with

me, that everybody has a right to live in a safe neighborhood.




10

1§

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

23

There just cannot be any question about that. It is not safe
when we have hoodlums, thugs, interested in making large pots of
money being able to, to the extent they are doing it now in
Alameda County, Jjust totally inundate a community with drugs.
They can pick up kids every day of the week, and I get them every
day of the week, standing out on the corners just as though they
were hawking fruit in the summertime. They'fe selling them to
undercover policemen. They're spending a large amount of money.
You get these teens, two undercover cops, two uniformed cops
around the corner on the radio, and they'll bust one or two kids
for one or two or three boxes of cocaine, bring them in, and I
conduct a hearing. We deal with it, and we make a finding, and
then we've got to do something about it.

It doesn't touch it. As long as you've got one, you've
got three more who sprinQ up because that want to do it, want to
make some money. And we don't see any reduction taking place.

Neighborhoods need some help in how they can organize.
The law enforcement people need some help getting more funds to
do the kind of jobs, as I've stated before, only théy can do. I
think that needs to come, in large measure, from the State
government.

I hear a lot of business about this is a local
government responsibility. I hear some of them saying that the
State government is supposed to be doing it. Others say: This
is what the federal government's supposed to be doing.

But people who are just living, and who are working, and

who are plain old common people may not remember all the civics
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i courses as they should have learned in grade school. They just

know the government ought to do something. There ought to be

some way whereby there can be a curtailment of the availability

| of this stuff. Families ought not to feel a need to come to

court to say, "Judge, there's nothing I can do about it. I can't
move because I don't have the money. My kid's got to go to

school. It's all in the school where he is; it's all in the

I neighborhood where he is." They ought not to be able to be

. needing to come to say that to me because they think there's

nothing they can do about it.

If they're interested in trying to do something about
it, and the vast majority are trying to put a stop to this, then
they need‘some help. I think that should be integrated as a
significant part of your Master Plan. |

I know there are other aspects that need to be dealt
with, I'm getting increasing numbers of young people who are
becoming addicted to the stuff. 1Initially they started coming in
simply as dealers, selling the stuff.. Now I'm getting more
youngstets who come in, they are selling but they're addicted.

We have to find ways to‘meet, deal with their problems. We've

got to put them in programs of various and sundry kinds. We

zdon’t have enough of those.

We need more local programs available to us. We don't
want to hear that stuff about local government ought to do it, or
somebody else ought to do it. Local government says: I've got
so many other things, I don't have the money to handle it. In

the meantime, the neighborhoods are going to hell.
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I've got a lot I can say. Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Judge, we appreciate you taking the
time to offer your testimony. It's very obvious to me that
vou're committed to try and find an answer. Soﬁnds to me like
you're up to your eyeballs in the problem.

I have a guestion, though, which is relative to a pilot
project which to my understanding is in Alameda County. It's the
only county in the State that has been undertaking a somewhat
unique effort, I guess, in a special criminal justice grant
program that was authorized by legislation of Assemblyman Harris.
It's evidently a coordination program.

I'm wondering if you can tell me in yéur opinion how

effective that has been? Is it a program that we perhaps should

iconsider statewide? If you had it to do over again, how would

you change it?

JUDGE SWEENEY: Mr. Herbert of the District Attorney's
Office, I notice, is on your calendar to speak to you. He can
probably give you a better overall response to that question,
because one of the things those of us in juvenile justice are
uptight about is the War on Drugs didn't bear in mind that many
of the people in the trenches were going to be juveniles. We
didn't get any of that money. It's going to those adults, and
it's great. You got to do it; you got to do thét kind of thing.
But people ought to recognize that there is a certain effect it
has on other aspects of the operation alsé.

As I said, we have just a tremendous influx in the

number of our young people in the juvenile justice system who are

i
|
i

|
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coming through as a result of this drug business. We have filled
up our juvenile hall, and it's threatened with closure. They've

threatened by saying, "You've got so many kids in there, we're

going to declare that it's inappropriate to hold kids in it."

We've got two camps. We've got kids who've got to wait two and

| three months before we can get them into a cémp. Basically it's

because of this drug stuff that nobody saw.

When you take a big War on Drugs in a big county like
Alameda, you've got to look at the whole picture and bear in mind
it's going to have some effect somewhere else. There's a

tremendous increase in the number of arrests and the number of

gconvictions, the number of sentences of adults because of this

War on Drugs.

I would certainly urge that it‘be spread to other
counties where they have drug problems, but for God's sake,
remember that there's a juvenile population that's going to be
tremendously affected by whatéver you do to the adult population
on drugs. I think that is foremost.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you, Judge Sweeney.

Senator Morgan, a question?

SENATOR MORGAN: Judge Sweeney, what's the source of

‘most of the cocaine that's being distributed?

- JUDGE SWEENEY: From what I hear from the police, and we

meet ~-- well, some of us meet with them about once every month in

| the juvenile district to keep track of what's going on -~ they

indicate that it's simply coming from out of the country, the

bulk of it. They indicate that it comes in on ships, and it
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comes in in other ways. They're required to cooperate with the
federal government customs people and so forth in order to get
it. That's as close as I can get to the source.

I don't get any indication that it's manufactured or
created locally other than it's in the country. It may well be.
I simply don't know.

SENATOR MORGAN: This sort of confirms what Peter
Ueberroth said in a conversation I had with him, the Baseball
Commissioner, that he had some question about whether all the
millions of dollars and billions of dollars that we're spending
on drug education prevention programs are ever going to do any
good until the federal government dries up the sources. It's two
countries primarily.

I'm wondering, at the State level we always hesitate to
become involved in international issues. That's somebody else's
responsibility. But until we're able to work with our federal
elected officials, we've got to get that message to them so we're
not swimming upstream.

JUDGE SWEENEY: A thousand years ago, I was a member of
the Berkeley City Council. I have no hesitation about getting
involved in international issues.

(Laughter.)

SENATOR MORGAN: I recall that.

JUDGE SWEENEY: I certainly agree. We've got to get it
at the source. We've got to stop it from getting into the
neighborhoods. |

SENATOR MORGAN: Your source is out of the country?
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i JUDGE SWEENEY: That's my understanding.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Other questions from members cf the

| panel? Mr. Bayquen.

MR. BAYQUEN: Judge Sweeney, do you believe that stiffer

!penalties are necessary for the War on Drug dealers who are

| adults or juveniles?

JUDGE SWEENEY: I don't think stiffer penalties are
needed for juveniles. Right ﬁow we can give them the same
penalty we can give adults.

Our problem is that we're dealing with different kinds
of people. We're dealing with youngsters who have not developed
yet. - They have not matured yet. They are maturing.

We don't have the -- we don't have the proper means to
deal with the kids the way they bught to be dealt with. I've had
to modify my policies as to what kids I'm going to lock up for
how long because we don't have enough room. There are some kids

that you can lock them up for 30 days and probably never see them

again. Other kids, it takes a little bit longer. Some need some

cadditional stuff in addition to being locked up. Some we send to

the California Youth Authority. It's overcrowded. It's dismal.
' I wouldn't want to send a kid there for anything but the toughest .
problems. We can't treat a kid adeguately, from my judgment, for

drug stuff by sending him to the California Youth Authority. And

vet they have one cf the best technical treatment facilities for

ﬁthose youngsters,

I I don't need more years' time made available to lock a

1t
i

Wkid up. I need some other services to help deal with the

problems that these kids have.

i
Il
i
|

|
!
|
|
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The adults I can't speak to. For the last six years
I've been back in my childhood.
CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Mr. Howenstein,

MR. HOWENSTEIN: I'd like to ask a follow-up guestion on

that. 1 think what the Judge said is something that we

discovered last year in some of our hearings.

Before I put words in your mouth, your Honor, as you
talk about the increased number of children who are distributing
drugs, is it your sense that the adults are using those children?
And do you have any understanding as to why they might be using
those children?

JUDGE SWEENEY: There's no question but that it's the
adults who are using those children. It's adults who are buying
the stuff. KXids rarely are the ones who buy from each other.
After they get hooked on it, they start buying. You've got the
adults that are giving them rebates, giving them a cut rate on
stuff so they can get them hooked so they can use them more and
more.

Yes, they're using them. They’'re also using them out
there selling them because the penaltieé, théy figure, are much
less than they would be if an adult were caught doing the same
kind of thing.

You can send a kid up to Y.A. now, send him up for
murder in the first degree, while an adult's looking at life
imprisonment without possibility of parole. The most you're
going to look for with a kid is about five to seven years.
That's the most. That's a tremendous increase in the number of

years.
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MR. HOWENSTEIN: Recognizing the sensitivity of your
;gresponse, do you think that tﬁe adult who uses a child in that
yfashion, that insidious fashion, should be subjected to maybe
more severe penalties?

i JUDGE SWEENEY: Yes, I would hang him up by whatever the
tenderest part there is and leave him there. Yes, there's no
flimit to how toggh you ought to be with an adult.

MR. HOWENSTEIN: Thank you.

| There are several things going on in your community. I

know the mayor has a coordinating council for drug and antidrug
éprograms. The Oakland community organizations that I have met
%with are involved in a lot of the community activities. We've

jhad comﬁunity members involved in some of our college seminars to

lorganize many of the same things you're talking about.

! Is your familiarity both with what the mayor's program

i
i

is doing as well as with the Oakland community organization? Is
that kind of tracked at your suggestionkthat we pursue more
rapidly, more in depth, to organize and support the community's
lresponse?

| JUDGE SWEENEY: Yes, I certainly don't want to give the

impression that nothing's being done. What I'm suggesting is

gthat not enough is being done of the kinds of things which are

'being done in order to meet the enormously increased numbers.

That's what needs to be done.

1
i

I The alternative is unthinkable. We are really and truly
losing children. When we lose them as children, the

probabilities are, if we don't get far more effective in our
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remedial actions than we are now, then we're going to lose them
forever. Then they're going to be a burden on the rest of us.
They're going to be on welfare, or they're going to be locked up.
They're just going to be hanging around on the streets, ripping
us off in other kinds of ways simply because they will have no
ability to be self-sustaining.

We can't afford that. Whatever money we have to put
into at the front end to prevent this in the first place is
worthwhile.

MR. HOWENSTEIN: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Time for one more gquestion of this
witness. Ms. Rose,.

MS. ROSE: There are five neighborhoods in Sacramento
that are getting together and putting on a conference for parents
and kids at the State Capitol. BAnd they are addressing =-- the
name of the conference is Save Our Children -- and they are
addressing how parents can get together and use their parent
power within those neighborhoods to get rid of these drug
dealers, and get rid of the problems, and kind of clean up their
own neighborhoods, and learning some technigues in how to get
that parent power together and, you know, do it themselves,
because they don't see any help coming from the outside.

Do you see this kind of thing, this kind of prevention
tool, as an important thing to maybe be successful in other
neighborhoods?

JUDGE SWEENEY: I think that's extremely important.

It's an extremely important tool. I could certainly urge
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Sacramento to invite other counties to come in and participate,

at least to observe, so they can set up similar gatherings in

" other counties.

The general population, no matter what you read and
hear, the general population generally, I get the sense of, is
woefully uninformed about this business.

We meet with the parents when we have the kids in

?custody periodically. The parents will sit -- you know, they

don't have to sit up front, and the kids will be assigned to camp
or juvenile hall. Then you will hear the different parents talk
about how much they do not know. They don't know the symptoms to

look for which indicate that their kid is either selling stuff --

'you know, if he comes in with a brand-new Cadillac and he's a

sophomore in high school, then they Have an idea. But short of
that displaying a lot of money, they don't have any idea that he
might be involved.

They don't know the symptoms to look for that he may be
using. It's heartrending to hear the parents sit there and say
that: "I had no idea that my son was using this stuff." Yet his

grades had dropped off dramatically; he'd come up with a whole

new set of friends; he dropped all his old friends. They didn't

know who the new friends were. He's having these kinds of odd
kinds of illnesses from time to time. Nothing indicated to them
that he could have been on drugs.

They neéd the kind of thing that you're talking about.
They need to hear it over and over and over again, just permeate

the entire neighborhood.
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MS. ROSE: That's the kind of thing that we're
addressing. I'm on the planning committee for that, and that's
exactly what we plan on doing.

JUDGE SWEENEY: Invite the rest of us to come in and
watch it.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you very much, Judge Sweeney.
We really appreciate your testimony.

We've been joined on the panel by Mr. Robert Ryan,
representative of the State Board of Education.

Our next witness is Charles Herbert, who's the Assistant
District Attorney of the Narcotics Unit from Alameda County.

MR, KINGSBURY: Members of the committee, I'm not
Charles Herbert. My name is Kenneth Kingsbury. I'm a Deputy
District Attorney in Alameda County. Mr. Herbert had an
unexpected death in the family; he couldn't make 1t this morning.

We'd like to thank you for inviting us to participate.
For the last vear and a half, I've been the grant coordinator for
Assemblyman Harris® AB 248, Urban Warcotics Task Force program.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Excuse me. My apologies. I should
have recognized.

Our court reporter, who dances those fingers, needs a
five-minute break. I was supposed to announce before you began
your testimony, so if vou'll Just be patient. My-apologies.

{Thereupon a brief recess was taken;)

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: The panel will reconvene,

Mr. Kingsbury, please come to the podium.
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Before you begin and while the penel is coming back, I'd

Jiike to recogrize Mrx. Paul DePace, who ig the gentleman walking

back to Lhic seat there. He is representirg the Seven-Eleven
stceres.

I would like to share with members of the panel, some of
which are aware, that last veal we attempted to produce & very

high quality drug video that would be distributed through the

Stete Department of Education tc our lecal schools; a drug video

that would have stars who relate to kids. We started off with

Michael J. Fox o1 "Back to the Future". This was an attempt to

have a public and private partnership.

The bottom line is that Seven-Eleven, in gocod community

spirit, was willing to put up hali the money tor the video, and

the State Department of Ecducation with the Department of Alcohol

halt.

So thank vou. We appreciate that. We were t

Cd
ol
mn

chatting at the bhreak as to how it was progressing. It's
developing very weili, anc hopefully we can look forward to this
iall beginning to distribute it through the Department of
ECU(J%iOP. ‘

Okay, we've got evervybody back. My apclogies again, Mr.
Fingshury.
MR. KINGSBURY: As I indiceted, Zor the last year and a

halt I have been the coordinator for Assemblyman Farris' AB 248,

the Urban Narcotice Task Force.

and Drug programe, Chauncey Veatch's operation, put up the other
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For some of you who maybe aren't familiar with the
program, it is an agenéy approach essentially dealing with the
supply side of drugs consisting of our courts, of personnel in
the District Attorney's Offices, the Public Defender's Office,
the Probation Department, the Sheriff's Office, and the court
administration.

Basically we are a multi-agency approach toward dealing
with the drug problem in the City of Oakland. As indicated by
Judge Sweeney, essentially on a needs assessment basis, we have
decided to deal principally with the street dealer adult.

I think the components that were mentioned at the outset
by Senator Seymour are well listed, well needed in terms of a
five-year program. As you might imagine, as a District Attorney
specifically involved in the kind of program I'm involved in, nmy
emphasis leans towards law enforcement and their coordination
with the community.

In the last year and a half, I have locked up hundreds
if not thousands of individuals for drug viclations. Basically
we are filling the prisons that haven't even been built vet. Our
problem in Alameda, and everybody's problem, is that there's just
not enough room in the county jail to hold them any more.

I think any part, however, of a program that you come up
with in terms of a five-year plan must concern law enforcement.
The emphasis now is on treating the demand side of the problem.

In response to Senator Morgan's comments, I reallyv
believe you have to start educating kids starting in the womb

forward if you want to solve the problem.
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However, as to the“law'enforcement part of it, I think

- it's very necessary, we have found it very necessary that you

" have to set the right climate for this kind of dramatic change to

I come about. I have some specific suggestions.

First of all, I think to the dealers Judge Sweeney was
talking about, you have to make the penalty certain and tough

enough to make the consequences known, and you have to make that

' person less available. When you arrest a man for dealing, you

; have to make sure he's not right back on the street, being

glorified as a John Wayne or what have you. You don't want to
make him a hero.

How do we go about doing that? Again, I'll defer to
Judge Sweeney, |

He mentioned surveillance. These things will cost the
State of California very much ﬁoney. That has been repeated in a
number of bills before the State. I think there's another one
this year. I don't know if it's died or in mortal danger at this
point, but it's dealing with electronic surveillance. I'm
talking about a very tight form of electronic surveillance. If
we're goiné to get the big dealers, and I'm not talking about the

the little hood that's selling a little rock of cocaine, but

,we're talking about the suppliers, the man above the midrange

dealer. We need that kind of surveillance under the tightest and
strictest controls that the courts and the Legislature can find
available to be able to tie him down. Without it, we can't get

it.
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Secondarily, what can we do once we arrest this man?
I'd like to compare for a moment the State system and the federal
system in several regards. First is the system of bail.

The federal system has a rather unique component to it
in that if you arrest somebody on a large scale dope dealing
operation, it is fairly simple, to make a simplification, to have
that person held without bail, or at least with extremely high
bail.

We don't have that readily available to us in the State
system. And as a result, one of the problems I have in
prosecuting cases in Alameda County is, if I get anybddy other
than the little street dealer, he makes bail; he waives time;
he's out of custody; he gets arrested again; he makes bail; he
waiveé time; he's out of custody. And as a result, last Friday
during my pretrial session in Alameda County Superior Court, I
had one man with three ongoing felonies out on $87,000 worth of
bail, still out today, and in my mind no doubt what he's doing.
I had another man who had four cases, four drug cases in a row.

What I'm saying is that the bail system in California
has to be revised to deal with those people that are arrested
with very high quantities of dope and those people that are
arrested repeatedly. The burden should at some point shift to
them to show why they are not a danger to the community, as I'm
sure we're all aware that they are.

Another adjunct to that is a rather recent and
frightening decision by a federal judge locally concerning

forfeiture funds, and it involves the case of a man named Rudy
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Henderson. Mr. Henderson was arrested and a great deal of funds

were taken from him. Forfeiture proceedings under the system

' were filed, but the judge allowed the defense attorney to cocllect

that money for her fee. | That's.goihg to defeat the forfeiture
proceeding. |

Unless something is done to tighten up those kinds of
rulings, that's going to defeat the whole purpose of the
forfeiture system. If the man's money can all turn right around
and go to his defense attofney, the forfeiture proceeding is
gone. |

Next, in terms of drug trials, there is a section of the

Penal Code, 1048, that deals with who gets preference and what

goes to trial. Mostly they deal with cases of aged victims,

child victims, sex abuse.

What I'm submitting to you is that to that list under
1048 of the Penal Code's need to get priority are certain types
of drug offenders; again, the repeat drug offender and those with
a large amount of drugs. Those people neéd drug priority =-- or
excuse me, trial priority so theyycan't sit back, hire a good
private defense attorney who has a thriving practice over half
the State of California and whb will‘telephone in saying, "I need
a continuance because I'm in some trial in Shasta County," or a

trial in San Joaquin County, or a trial in Stanislaus County.

And it's a rotating stream of continuance which will sometimes

lead to continuances of up to two years.

Last in this line is sentence. As I indicated before,

in the last year and a half, even as District Attorney, I have
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come to realize that we Jjust can't lock up the future generation.
That doesn’'t appear to have a future for us. There have to be
more alternatives in terms of intensive probation programs, work
incentive kinds of programs for first-time offenders.

However, you must do something to help us when we do
catch that midline-to-above drug dealer; the guy who's dealing in
half pound, pounds, or kilos mostly of cocaine. That has to do
with the fact of no probation statutes. They're pretty broad
right now, guite frankly. There was some legislation passed last
vear that helped us gquite a bit, but the enhancements that the
Legislature has passed for us, 11370.2, .4, and 11379.8 of the
Health and Safety Code, all add substantial enhancements, but for
some reason, riders always get attached to those bills saying
that they can be excused in the presence of unusual
circumstances. At least in our county that tends to be a big
problem because an unusual circumstance seems to be if the man is
standing before the judge awaiting sentence.

So again, there are three or four areas that I think for
our law enforcement components that are vital: electronic
surveillance; tightening up of the bail; priérity trials; and
some rather certain sentencing so that the man does not go right
back out into the community and is seen there peddling his drugs
day after day as something of a folk hero.

In terms of community action seminars and the community
component, and how law enforcement might help, I have found that
our participation, the District Attorney's Office at least in the

Oakland Interagency Council, and I was a member of Mr. Dugan's
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Attorney General's Challenge program, I've attended those kinds

| of programs. They're invaluable. They do, however, need to be

" flexible.

One of the problems we've had with legislation recently
is particularly where it talks about vertical prosecution. That
means the man takes the caSe all the way from Stage One all the
way through. That's not flexible enough. I fhink the approach
has to be for maintaining certainty but flexibility. Perhaps a
team kind of vertical prosecution would help us considerably.

‘Thank you.

CHAiRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you, Mr. Kingsbury.

Questions?

MR. DUGAN: I wondered if the Judge wanted to defend his

' judicial brethren.

JUDGE SWEENEY: He speaketh straight.
{(Laughter.)
MR. DUGAN: I had a question that troubles me.
Do you think, as a prosecutor, that we incarcerate too
many juveniles? Stay away from the adult side.
MR. KINGSBURY: You're speaking about for drug offenses?

MR. DUGAN: Mostly I'm speaking across the board, but if

you want to narrow it to drug offenses, yes, I'll §O'along with
éthat.

| MR. KINGSBURY: It's a difficult question to answer. 1In
my opinion, we don't do enough. And I'm not speaking of just
jail. The problem we have there is there does not seem to be

enough alternatives to jails. At this point it appears to be the
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only form of punishment is incarceration. We have weekender
programs; we have a boys' camp; we have certain periods of
incarceration which Judge Sweeney has been one of the best
juvenile court judges that we've had. I'm sure he's aware that
the alternatives are lacking.

The idea is that when you catch the kid selling the $20
rock on the street -- I deal only with the adults that are using
the 12—year—old to do that -- your choice is to do nothing and
send him back to the same community from which he came, or to do
what? Put him in jail with a bunch of fellows who have done the
same kinds of things. And unfortunately the periods of
incarceration are short enough where it's old home week. They're
either sitting on their butts at home watching television, or
they're sitting at juvenile hall watching television, talking
with themselves. And it dcesn't change. It doesn't help a great
deal.

It's a bit of punishment, yes, but unfortunately it's
not viewed as that in many instances. It's viewed as the price
of doing business.

It appears to me what we should be concentrating on are
alternatives to those kind of lockup sitﬁations, alternatives
that will result in productive ends.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Other guestions? Mr. Howenstein.

MR. HOWENSTEIN: If you could, Ken, talk a little bit
about the effectiveness of the coordinaﬁed program, such as the
Harris program. Just briefly about the coordinated efforts at

the local level,
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MR. KINGSBURY: What we've done is, at the start, each

. of these agencies involved -- the courts, the district attorney,

the public defender, the probation department and the sheriff's

office -- all assigned people to be nominated to our board. I

| suppose I was the representative nominated from the D.A.'s office

because I've not only been a D.A. for ten years, but‘I was a
probation officer ten years before that. Before that I worked in
the State prison systems. So I have a feel for the whole thing.
Essentially what we do is, we have periodic meetings,
monthly or six weeks. What it basically boils down to, Mr.
Howenstein, is that we have now, rather than dealing with an

unknown entity and an unknown agency, you have somebody you can

phone, a named individual. You get together periodically and

' work out problems of communications, problems of the way business

is done.

And what we've found, or what I've found =-- vae been
with Alameda County in one capacity or another since 1965 -- is
that the way business is done has become much more efficient.
There are not as many things slipping through the cracks anymore.
People are talking. The lines of communication are open.

It's not agency-wide, however. It seems since our
program has started, it pretty much stays within that program.

It has not expanded to make the whole agency closer together, but

iin terms of our unique problem dealing with drugs, it has brought

jus closer together. I think it's made us a good deal more

efficient.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Other questions? Mr. Ryan.
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MR. RYAN: Schools. I know in Alameda County most of
the kids don't go into this program. I know of several programs
from the county office.

Do they work? What role do schools play with prevention
in your program?

MR. KINGSBURY: Our program is primarily, as you can
tell, law enforcement oriented toward prosecution of drug
offenders.

My contacts with the schools and the schools' program
has basically been limited to the impact program, the decide
program, mainly because my kids are involved in it.

I have found, at least for the schocols that I'm involved
with, that basically provides a very good measure of education.
As indicated, I think drugs, at least for my age person rapidly
approaching 50, when I was in high school, this was totally ‘
unheard of. My kids now know so much more about drugs than I
ever did at that particular age. Parents generally aren't --
don't know what's going on.

And I think the programs that I've seen put on by the
schools are great insofar as education is concerned, helping them
to at least understand the pharmacological results of what
theY're going to be taking and what they're doing to their
bodies.

The problem I have with it in our particular community
dealing with the guote-unguote "middle-class™ kids is that the
morality or the social acceptance is basically there except for
that deviant number, maybe 10-20 percent of kids that have

problems anyway.
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! The probrem that I have with it is, it doesn't appear to

| be reachiny thnat segment of our community where it's a socially

acceptable thing to do. It's a morally fine thing to do, to use
drugs.

Frankly, a goocd percentagc of this generation, I've
given up. It's my contention that we have to start dealing with
the kid coming out of the cradle at this point and save him earlierx

CHAZRMAN SEYMOUR: Time for one more question, and that
guestion goes to Mr. George Feicht.

MR. FEICHT: Given your earlier statement where you
talked about the need for coordinated efforts, and law
enforcement ought to be a key ingfedient of any kind of
coordinated effort, I agree withbthat.

Your law enforcement coordinating council you have, do

yvou think there's a place to kind of expand that maybe to include
Epeople from education and some people from a treatment/prevention
type network? Would that work, or is sbmething like that in
Alameda County now?

MR. KINGSBURY: There isn’'t anything formalized in our
program right now. It's something that I have discussed of
making a part of the AB 248 thing, and I've offered our services
to some of the local schools in terms of putting together sort of

a law enforcement package, and that would consist of a district

lattorney, a public defender, -a probation officer, and someone

from the street arrest team that Judge Sweeney was referring to.
Even though they're not part of our program, I go out and ride
with them on occasion and make telephone contact daily, if not

more often.
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But I think that kind of thing would be helpful. WwWe'd
certainly be willing to do it. I think you'll find that law
enforcement agencies, particularly the youth services division,
even though they like to think of themselves as tough guys and
our job is law enforcement only, most of them, when you get right
down to it, would be willing to participate in something like
that.

We'd certainly, from our standpoint in law enforcement,

i encourage it.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: I'm sorry, we're going to have to
move on. Thank you, Mr. Kingsbury.

MR. KINGSBURY: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Our next witness is the Honorable
Donald B. Squires, Judge from the Fremont Municipal Court.

Judge Squires, thank you for being with us tcday.

JUDGE SQUIRES: Thank you. Good morning, Senator
Seymour, Senator Morgan, and members of the ad hoc panel.

First I'd like to thank you for including me in your
discussions today. I hope I'll be able to give you something of
a municipal court perspective on some of the substance abuse
problems we all face.

I'd like to introduce myself first to explain something
about my background so you can evaluate my comments more
effectively.

I'm a municipal court judge from a suburban, homogenous,
middle-class community, with a jurisdiction of about a quarter of

a million people. The jurisdiction is Fremont, in the San
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Francisco Bay Area. It is serviced, as I say, by six municipal

I've been on the bench now for four years. "My previous
legal experience has been in the same district attorney's office
as Mr. Kingsbury who just testified, and in Fresno. I now sexrve

as Chairman of the Judicial Coordinating Committee, a

representative body of judges in Alameda County on the municipal

benches, and as Chair of the Subordinate DUI Committee.
I believe I share many of the goals of the Select
Committee here today. I've been asked to comment on three

separate areas. As to the first one, proper goals, my focus is

'unequivocally, the prime goal has got to be reduce crime. This

crime comes of all sorts. I believe the only way we can create a

' more peaceful society is to address substance abuse totally.

I previously referred to myself not as a municipal court

' judge but as a substance abuse judge. Eighty-five to ninety

percent of the cases that appear before me are directly or

indirectly related to substance abuse. Studies show that 44

fpercent of all the arrests nationwide are related to alcohol

alone. The Los Angeles Police Department figures show that 72

| percent of all their arrests directly involve alcohol.

No municipal court judge with whom I've ever conversed
believes that the figures are so low. Every single one believes

that our involvement with substance abuse is-at least 80-~90

ipercent. Those are the numbers I hear around the state

teverywhere.
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I have figures from the U.S. Department of
Transportation, Fatal Accident Reporting System, National
Judicial Council, Los Angeles Police, and they're all the same
kinds of statistics that everybody. here has seen. I'm not going
to repeat them all for you. Each of the people here must have
known these figures and must be committed to solving the problem
of substance abuse.

But as a substance abuse judge, let me make first one of
only two or three major comments. Other than police officers,
there is no single group in California that sees more substance
abuses on a daily basis than a municipal court judge. We see
more substance abusers on a daily basis than every treatment
program combined. Two percent of our nation's population, some 4
million people, are arrested each year because of their use of
alcohol. Everyone comes before a municipal court judge or
something similar along that line throughout the country.

In the last week, I've handled cases involving alcohol,
which I believe to be the drug of preference throughout the
nation, but also LSD, heroin, tcluene, cyclohexanes, and cocaine.
Even in the guiet suburban communities such as mine, on Friday I
held in my hand some $800,000 to $1 million worth of cocaine.

To answer your question, Senator Morgan, that cocaine
came from Peru and was shipped in by allegedly =-- the decision
hasn’t been made -- but allegedly by a person trying to make a
profit who lives in a lovely residential area, quietly, in Union

City.
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The municipal court judges are unique, however, in that

;they have the power to do something about all of the people that
! come in frpnt of them. I believe that municiéal court judges

. provide an interface that you can use in whatever processes you
?design to serve as a link between enforcement and the eventual

;treatment of substance abuses.

Judge Sweeney, who is revered in our county,
particularly in his concern with juvenile law, and Mr. Kingsbury
both were talking about enforcemént. My focus is on what to do
with the person when he comes to me; what to do, I believe, is to
define his treatment. |

Your second question was concerning the effective use of

resources. To me it's startlingly obvious: use the judges that

lare already in place. You have to involve them. You already

‘have a core of dedicated people who have a finger on the pulse

and problems of their community. You already have a building in
the center of every city in California filled with personnel and
equipment designed to assist in this particular area. You
already have the complete infrastructure that's designed to
support the coﬁrts.

If you have to focus on massive judicial education on

' substance abuse, then youvhave to rekindle the dialogue on what

judges should do and what they can do. Perhaps in five years
that's all you can really hope to accomplish.
But the problems of substance abuse will not

realistically be solved within five years. I suggest that you

itrain and educate your judges and seed ground for the future.
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I have to make a slight aside here. This is a
bipartisan organization, but I find that in my community, we're
down one or two judges. We have had an opening now for some
time, the last three or four years, and we've been asking for a

new judge to be appointed. That's been bogged down in partisan
politics.

I don't mean to include this group in those partisan
politics, but I wish to let you know that we don't have all the
judges that everyone says we should have because of politics.,
You're involved in that area. You resolve that. I want you to
know we need judges. We can't do the job that we're supposed to
do without the staffing, let alone the enormous problem that
you're trying to resolve.

My second recommendation is that municipal courts focus
on mandatory assessment of every person convicted of a drug or
alcohol-related offense to determine the degree of substance
abuse and what to do with them. In my view, this would include
most of the people I interact with on a day-to~day basis.
Without knowing what makes a person act the way he does,
sentencing becomes neither an art nor a science; it becomes a
guess. Judges in California sentence by norms that have no
relation to the problems they try to address. Assessment seems
to be a solution.

It's believéd that 15 percent of the drinking population
of America consumes over 73 percent of all the alcohol. It would
help me to know that the person in front of me at thé time of

sentencing fits in this high-risk category. As it is now, I
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look at the blood alcohol content if I have it, the drug
assessment if there is one; the person's prior record if it's
known, and some of the circumstances around the event that
brought the person before me. Freqguently they do not really tell
me wﬁether this person is a true first-time offender or whether
it's merely the first time he's been caught. More often than not
I believe that it is perhaps the second.

My third recommendation is your Select Committee include
on its staff or as consultant municipal court judges. The
California Judges Association’might also serve as a valuable
resource. Judges can help in designing, or more likely

critiquing, legislation. The laws you pass will have no teeth

'until and unless the judges enforce them.

By jnges I also include prosecutors and the police. By
co-opting and including judges in thé design of your Master Plan
seems to me essential to the success of your endeavors. I have
no empire-building, grandiose schemes in mind, but I see judges
as being already in place and able to serve if they're given the
resources and training and educétion that they need.

1'd like to offer a side comment. I often hear
reference to a concept called treatment. And I think that from
-- you ought to know that from my perspective, there is no such
thing as treatment, in that out there that people refer to, we
don't have treatment programs. With all respect to the county
people, the State people involved inyﬁreatment, they're not
funded, and they can't get the people that I havé. I could send
hundreds of peoplé on a monthly basis to treatment programs and

completely swamp Alameda County treatment programs.
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First of all, my people that I send wouldn't qualify for
the alcohol and drug treatment programs. They're reserved for
people with greater problems than most of the people I see, or at
ieast diagnosed with greater problems. There are ohly a few
individuals who carry insurance that covers alcoholism. The DUI
programs that I send people to are not treatment in the current
sense of the word; they're educational. And education and
treatment should not be confused.

There are numerous studies that have shown that sending
someone who is a true substance abuser to a simple education
program, such as our DUI program, does not address the problem,
but in fact enhances the problem by creéting more stress on that
individual, by making him educated, true, more aware of his
problem, and he goes out to the bars as he leaves the DUI
program. Any number of cases‘of that are recorded.

Your panel has an enormous task. It's gratifying to all
of us that you're attempting to do it. Banning alcochol didn't
work in prohibition. Banning drugs now isn't working very weil.
Education and treatment costs more; we all know that and try to
figure out ways to handle that.

I suggest that you begin by educating your
professionals, that you institute an assessment program so that
we know who needs treatment, and somehow build a treatment system
statewide from the beginning, from the ground up, as your prime
goal.

I know that what I'm calling for will require a complete

redesign of many roles in the municipal court and misdemeanor
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| structure, and in particular probation officers. As probation

_officers, I believe .that you have to beef up the number of

" probation officers so that you can supervise substance abuse. I

' believe that we should, as many other states have done, such as

i
1

i Maryland and Illinois, all across the country, make every

iprobation officer a qualified alcohol counselor. We don't do

that. We don't have the funds or resources to do that, and our

probation officers look at alcohol problems at the bottom of

' their pile. They traditionally look at crimes, those involving

rape, murder, arson, burglary, the traditional types of crimes,

and they are not looking at the root causes in terms of how to

| help them.

I think that we need alcohol counselors. I think we

' need judges and lawyers to interrogate and be addressed, be

educated as to the problems of substance abuse as it affects us
all.

When you think that my job is that of a substance abuse
judge, that the whole muni court system is dealing with them, no
one ever addresses them. I think perhaps you need to inform the
community of the enormity and the gravity of the substance abuse
problem.

I'd like to conclude with one other comment. If I'm an
gxpeft in any area, I'm an expert in driving under the influence
as an observer., Our system is incredibly ineffective. I'm not
saying it's inefficient. We all know it's inefficient. It's

also ineffective.




10

11

12

13

.14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

53

We don't punish driving under the influence offenders
seriously. We pretend to; we say that we're going to send them
to jail. But if I send someone to jail in Alameda County for
less than 15 days, he's out of that jail because we have such
overcrowding that a sentence of less than 15 days is literally
meaningless.V

If I give someone a fine, and I use the législatively
mandated minimum fine, and I add all the penalty assessments, it
comes to about $750-800 for a first-time offender. If I do that,
the person normally can't pay it immediately; so we put him into
a court collection system, and the figures show they don't pay
it. They pay part of it, and eventually it falls apart.
Certainly I don't mean everybody, but I do mean the majority of
people.

We give license restrictions, and from the judge;s
perspective, I read the literature and I see that license
restrictions are supposed to be one of the things that has the
greatest effect on our citizens, but yet there's rarely a person
that appears before me that isn't driving under a suspended
license. They've all been there before. Their licenses are
restricted. So, I don't see the license restriction as being as
valid as perhaps some of the national studies.

I don't think our system rehabilitates at all. I don't
think it deters repeat offenders. I see far too many of them to
think that we really are a deterrent factor.

I think our municipal court system in terms of DUI

enforcement is successful only in one area, and that's in
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building contempt for our society of\laws by the people who come
before us, come before us and see this magnificent system with
all the grandeur, and when they walk out, they realize nothing
happened.

I think that we must either decide to live with what we
have now, which is a woefully inadequate system with problems
compounding geometrically, or we need to build new jails and
warehouse offenders, or we need to redesign the system on
intervention, rehabilitation and treatment grbunds. That's an
overwhelming objective for you. If that's your goal, so be it.

I would encourage you to consider treatment, however, as

‘one of your primary goals.

I should say I also agree with everything that I've
heard here earlier today. I've heard Judge Sweeney, and I agree
with his assessment. We need enforcement.

But I have more peopie every day than I can deal with.
So I think that we have to focus on what to do with them, and I
think that's got to be treatment.

Senators and members of thé committee, I appreciate it.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Questions of the panel? Ms. Rose.

MS. ROSE: I just heard about a program in Florida where

\the DUI offenders are, instead of putting them in jail with the

rest of the people there, doing a bleeper system where they're

ikept at home.

Do you know anything about that?
JUDGE SQUIRES: Yes,

MS. ROSE: And how do you feel about that?
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JUDGE SQUIRES: I think it's terrific. 1It's expensive,
and our county's investigated it about ﬁwo or three years ago.
Just like computers andvcalculators, the technology three years
ago was qguite different from what it is now.

I believe they're starting this in Santa Clara County or
some place right now. Each system requires a person to wear an
electronic bracelet or anklet, and they have to actually string a
new telephone line to that house and then put on a black box.

The person can only move so many feet away from the black box.
That would save money, and perhaps we could even charge the
offender for the service. I think it's great.

MS. ROSE: One thing they did in the one county in
Florida was that they had saved $248,000 in a very short time
just in, you know, you have to house these people when you put
them in jail, and so on and so forth.

JUDGE SQUIRES: You need to house people when they go'to-
jail in Alameda where they can afford it. But there needs to be
something else. The system is not totally self-enforcing. We
need to send probation officers out to the houses to spot check
to make sure the person's not getting soused and beating up on
their children. We don't know what's going on in‘that person's
mind, so we need to have some kind of a monitor.

But I think it's a wonderful idea to save money. I
would be very happy to push the idea as far forward as I can‘in
Alameda County.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Question, Mr. Fox.
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MR. FOX: Yes, I have kind of a follow-up guestion.

- It's a question related to the mandatory assessment.

If such a mandatory assessment process were in place,

}what would you think you would need as alternative treatment

' options basically for you as a judge?

JUDGE SQUIRES: I don't know if I need to send everybody

{who comes before me through the DUI program. I'd like to know
fwhether -=- I know that the legislation requires that I do that

3right now, or deny probation and give them more time in jail.

Realistically I°'d like to abolish part of the DUI

infrastructure altogether and not send people there if they don't

| need it; just send people there who do need it.

I'd also like, if I had that assessment in place, to

| skip DUI altogether for the first offender program, and instead’

make it one-vear long for the second offender rather than the

drinking driver program created by SB 38 some years ago. That

program is a treatment program; an inordinately expensive

fprogram. It costs close to $1,000 in our county to send someone

there. Of course, they pay on top of the fine.
What I would like to do if I had the assessment program
is decide which of the first time coffenders by definition are

truly substance abusers and send them straight to DDP. But I'm

%not about to do that when I simply see a one-three blood alcohol,
g no accident, nothing else in the police report that tells me this
jis a common occurrence. But if it turns out we just happened to
fget this guy on the way to the bar, and he hadn't even really

| started drinking, I'd be happy to send him to that program.
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I need first to know what the problem is, and then I
need some place to send him. The drinking driver program is only
one, and basically it's the only one, so I'll send people there
until they're overflowing and there are hues and cries that
there's no room.

Judge Sweeney and Mr. Kingsbury both commented on jails.
We can build another jail of the same size we have now in Alameda
County, and I'm sure we could fill it in one week without any
guestion. Every judge is sentencing based upon the fact that
there's no place to put people. I look for every alternative I
can before I will send them to jail. When I orxrder someone to go
to jail, and I want them to go there, it's for a reason. And I
feel that yvou may want to consider that in your deliberations as
well,

The‘jail systems are overcrowdéd. We have 1600 people
in Alameda County jails right now, and we keep people there who
are awaiting trial, and then we kick out people who have been
sentenced and found guilty. I find this a bit absurd, that
although there's a presumption of innocence in the beginning, we
keep them in jail; and once they're found guilty, we let them
out.,

My concern here is that, and I know that we're short on
time, is that we can f£ill the jails quickly if we need to, but
we've got no place tc put them. There were only four women who
were sentenced in Alameda County one day last month because every
other woman who was there was waiting for trial or waiting for

some other proceeding, which meant that the first woman who was.
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for trial, we had to kick out one of the sentenced People down to
three. That's absurd. |

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you very much, Judge Squires.
We appreciate you being here today.

Our next witness 1s Ramon Desagun, a teacher
fepresenting the California Teachers Association.

MR. DESAGUN: Good morning. I am Ramon Desagun. I am

representing the California Teachers Association.

I am a classroom teacher in Linden, California, just
outside of Stockton. I am Chair of the Department of Social
Sciences and work in establishing our drug program within the
school.

The California Teachers Association is pleased to have
been asked to participate in this series of hearings for we are
most concerned about the alarming growth in the number of young
people who are abusing drugs and alcohol. CTA has participated
in several task force commissions on drug and alcohol abuse
prevention and is committed to do whatever it can to reduce the
societal problem which faces us.

To quote from the Attorney General's Commission Report
on Drug and Alcohol Abuse, .
"Public schools must be part of the
solution to our drug and alcohol
abuse problems, for the future of
public education will be seriously

compromised if our schools are not
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Public education is the last egalitarian institution we

have in America today where we service everyone; whether you'r
gifted or special, rich or poor, we serve all of our students.
Public education has access to youth on a.large scale, and it
also has the personnel already trained in teaching techniques.
It is because of these reasons that the focus of drug
and alcohol abuse prevention must be in the classroom, for it'
kthe classroom teacher who has first and probably the best chan
of interpersonal communication with our students. Most often

is the classroom teacher who can determine if a student is

e

s
nel

it

abusing drugs or alcohol, and it is the teacher who can initiate

the helping chain to assist the student in overcoming her or h
problens.

As this committee develops its five-year Master Plan,
will take into consideration many components, and one of those
components will be the content of the curriculum to be used in
our public schools. There are several important criteria to
consider when adopting a drug and alcohol abuse prevention
curriculum.

First, the curriculum must be comprehensive in its

approach to K-12, and it must be mandated. We know that there

is

Sit

are some places out there in which the drug education problem is

very weak or almost nonexistent. The information given must be
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correct and current. The drug and alcoﬁol—free message must be
 transmitted to the students.

The curriculum must be thdroughly evaluated for its
effectiveness. The curriculum must be sensitive to California's
{ culturally diverse population.

Adequate staff training must be made available. The
| curriculum cannot be based on scare tactics, but rather on

enhancing such communication skills as listening skills, problem-

solving skills, decision-making skills, and most importantly the
| competent reinforcement of self-esteem.

School districts and local bargaining units must work
together to implement the program.

And lastly, the curriculum must be developed and
;delivered by a coalition of school and cOmmUnity personnel.

The implementation of these nine criteria, we are sure,
will lead to an effective drug and alcohol prevention program.
‘The local drug administrator in each county should play a
significant role in the development and implementation of the

‘schools‘ program.

% I know from personal experience that the administrator
ffrom my county has given significant assistance to my school's
3program.

CTA understands the purpose of the héaring today. The
“California Teachers Association is not one of the agencies which
E‘directly iﬁpacts the delivery of serviées by State and local

agencies; however, it is the opinion of the Association that all

agencies do work together so that the thrust of a prevention
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education effort is aimed at the classroom. The Master Plan
which is being developed by you must take this into
consideration.

Statewide and local agencies must cooperate in whatever
ways possible to see that the students in the classroom receive
as much attention and assistance as is possible to give. The
Association is aware of the need of streamlining of services
delivered to schools. Simply stated, the bureaucracy must be
minimized so that delivery can be maximized.

On behalf of the California Teachers Association, I

thank you for the opportunity for sharing the concerns of the

Association with you today. We have a most important task before
us: the saving of our youth from the abysmal experience of drug
and alcohol abuse. CTA wishes you the very best in your efforts.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you, Mr. Desagun.

Are there questions? Senator Morgan.

SENATOR MORGAN: In your county, are the cities
cooperating with schools in putting together any kind of
prégrams?

MR. DESAGUN: Most of that is coming through the County
Drug Administrator, most of the assistance. Mr. Feicht is our
expert there,

I teach in a rural area. We are no city; we are barely
a town, so I don't have that expertise.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Other questions of panelists? Mr.

Ryan.
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MR. RYAN: You mentioned comprehensive. Would you

elaborate on where would you see it being taught?

Right now there's a big push on academics -- math,
science, so forth. Where in the curriculum or school day do we
talk about evalﬁating, problem solving, responsibleydecision
making, drugs, alcchol?

MR. DESAGUN: Yeah. I am a teacher of American

| Government and also a teacher of Interpersonal Communication, so

! I'm in a unique situation in that I have all the seniors in my

high school for one semester for Government, and one semester for
my Interpersonal Communications. It gives us that time to
improve our skills as best we can.

I know that not every school can do that. 1In fact, I

' have not been doing that for two yeafs because the most important

interpersonal course has been replaced by economics, and I could

speak to you'for weeks about that if you like.

Comprehensive in that it must be delivered in every
grade 1e§el K through 12 in science courses, in the State basic
requirement courses of ninth graders and tenth graders, in health
courses that the primary and the little school kids take. It's
hard to f£ind a p}éce.

I know that my experience in my courses 1is unique, but
it must -- not only must it be com?rehensive, it must be
thoroughly integrated so that not just the science teacher is
going to deliver a drug-free message, but the social science
teacher, the English teacher with some of the reading that those

kids will be doing. There will be a thoroughly woven-in topic.
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Did I elaborate enough?

MR. RYAN: You mentioned bargaining units and so forth
working with administrators.

If a two or three week component were developed, do you
see this as a problem if I came to you as a teacher and asked you

to put this in your teaching? Would the teachers in your

Association say, "It doesn’'t say so in my contract. I've got to
teach this other course.® 0Or, "You didn't train me to teach this
course, "

Is that going to be a problem?

MR. DESAGUN: I don't think so.

I think that perhaps if the teachers are not trained,
they don't have the information, they would feel uncomfortable.
As you teach anything, you must first have that level of comfort.

No, because I think the teachers of California
thoroughly understand the problem which faces us. I cannot speak
for every bargaining unit, however.

MR, RYAN: Do you think theyv're trained adequately?

MR. DESAGUN: I think more training is necessary. As I
look at my own district, the training that we have had has been
-- about two years agoc we had é half-day, but I think those sorts
of things you always need refresher courses; you always need the
information that's available.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Sharon Rose.

MS. ROSE: I would just like to reiterate one thing that
you said a couple of times, and that is that any education, any
educational program that we do for our children should give the

drug-free message.
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And I think that's so important because we have to start
giving our kids an idea of whaﬁ we're talking about when we're
talking about drugs and alcohol, and if they're not drug-free,
then they're no use at all.

Do you find when you talk to your kids in your classroom

about drug-free that they argue with you about that and sort of

' blackmail you by saying, "The more you tell us not to use it, the

more we will®™?

This is kind of the argument that I get a lot, is that
people will say to me, "Well, the more you tell kids not to use,
the more they're going to use.”

MR. DESAGUN: Yeah, I know. I don't think that

' information, you know, is going to lead to that abuse.

I think the kids are really beginning to understand all

. 0of the very horrible effects that drugs have upon them, and they

need to know that they need to turn to something else. They need
to be armed with those skills.,

When I worked long ago for Wilson Riles in school

‘attendance, one of the things we found that was almost common to

every kid who was truant or who was a constant cutter was the

%fact that they had no interpersonal communication with an adult

;at school on a daily basis. Sometimes that's hard. When I have

160 kids running through my mill everyday, sometimes it's very
hard to find the time to interpersonally act with one of them.
Sometimes they fall through the cracks.

I think now the kids understand that drug-free. And I

know that there are other things out there which may not be
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necessarily working against, but if you'll look at the program of
SR, which is not entirely == it's an alcohol-free situation,
you moke the contract that if vou are drunk to call an adult. I
don't know if that's necessarilyv a conflict, but as much as
possible I think we need tc get the drug~free message across. 7T
think the kids are beginning to understand.

There are those that are committed to use no matter
what, but I think proper education, and the proper arming of the
kids with communication skills so that they can talk to their
parents or their peers, they can make the good decisions based on
good frameworks, then we know there's less risk.

MS. ROSF: Then you're saving to give them @ real clear
message and let them make up their own minds, but the message
cugnt to be clear. 1 agree with you.

MR. DESAGUN: Exactiv.

CHATRMAN SEYMOUR: HNext guestion, Mr. Meyers,

MER. MEYERS: You develcoped the curriculum in vour
district: is that tirue?

MR. DESAGUN: With the assistance ¢f the county. The
county-wide developed the K-12 curriculum. I worked on the 9-12
section,

MR. MEYERS: So with vour discussion on the need for a
mandatory curriculum, yvou're saying that there should be a
mandate, a gencral mendate, that the development csheould be done
ae vou did locally with the help ¢f teachers and the county drug

prooram?
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MR. DESAGUN: I think there needs to be some sort of

| outline, some general hints. A good drug abuse prevention

program includes these things, and these are the resources.

MR. MEYERS: Where in the. curriculum that you district

' has, where does the drug education occur? Is it in health or is

it integrated throughout?
MR. DESAGUN: In the elementary school it's in health.
In high school it is in what is called the basic requirements

where you do all those other things: vyou drive, and you fix

| broken bones, and do all those other things they do.

MR. MEYERS: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Mr. Ryan.

MR. RYAN: Could I make one observation?

I see a problem if you stick drug and alcohol abuse in
those courses that are not mainstream, not considered that vital.
It is a message to the kids that this is just about driving and
about some of the other things.

Place it in courses that are highly visible, that we
believe as adults are important courses.

MR. DESAGUN: I agree. As I said earlier, the science
teacher, the social science teacher, &é all need to be working
together. And at my high school right now, we are working on
that so the drug message, ﬁhe drug-free message, does not come
just from one place. I think that's significant.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Mr. Howenstein, one more question and

then we'll move on.
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MR. HOWENSTEIN: My concern is in the area of education
and teacher involvement.
I think the guestion has come up as to the availability

of the curriculum and the interest of the teachers on the issue,

| and with all kinds of special requirements.

Every time there is a new regquirement added, there seems
to be a sense of being overwhelmed or rebellion -- I'11 use that
word advisedly =-- on the part of teachers with one more mandate
when they still have the three Rs to do.

MR. DESAGUN: I understand, especially at the elementary
level where the teachér teaches spelling, teaches flossing, and
everything else. There is more to do.

But I think we need to pricritize those things we need
to attack as much as possible,

MR. HOWENSTEIN: Wculd you conclude then that anti-drug
education would be in the priorities?

MR. DESAGUN: Oh, ves.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you very much. We appreciate

lyour testimony as well as your commitment.

MR. DESAGUN: Thank you very much.
CHATIRMAN SEYMOUR: We'll take a short five-minute break.
{Thereupon a brief recess was taken.)

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: We're ready for our next witness, and
our next witness will be V.C. League, who is the Project Director
with the Western Training and Development Center.

MR. LEAGUE: Good morning, Mr. Seymour, members of the

committee and panel,.
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I have written testimony.

I am V.C. Leaque, and I am the Project Director of the
EWestern Training and Development Center, which is located in
‘~Oakland, California. The Training Center is one of five regional
; training centers which is sponsored by the U.S. Department of
%Education currently working with nine states, two territories,

I and working with about 36 schocl districts in thaﬁ area of which
11 of those school districts are in the State of California.

| In addition to that, I do quite a bit 0of -- my

| |
organization does quite a bit of work with California school
districts on an independent basis, so we are working with a

. number of other school districts in addition to the ones through
the Western Training Development Center.

Lastly, the organizaiion that I work for happens to be
the manager of the largest prevention resburce center in the
United States, which is based in Illinois, funded by the Illinois
Department of Alcocholism and Substance Abuse, and referred to as
'a CDS conventional resource center. In that pérticular project,
we have over 6,000 pieces of materials in the resource center.

I bring that up because I know that in California we
‘have been talking about a resource cénter for‘the last couple of
yvears. It's kind of ironic thatvin fact the resource center that
is operating in Illinois was originally developed in this’state’
| for use in Illinois.

1 I think that in terms of talking about the five-year
Master Plan, there are pieces of data that are important in terms

of research that has been done over the last 10-15 years relative
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to adolescent alcohol and drug abuse. My focus is primarily on
adolescents, although I do have contact in relationships working'
with adolescents and their parents who are often chemically
dependent or who are involved with chemicals.

Secondly, there are a number of school teachers and
administrators in this state who are also haviég problems with

chemicals, and that often becomes a major deterrent in being able

to do anything in schools, and I think that needs to be taken

under consideration also.

I think there’s four pieces of data that we need to loock
at when we talk about developing programming for alcohol and drug
abuse and that I think are essential in vour consideration for a
five“yearvplan. The first thing that we need to keep in mind is
that substance abuse seems to occur in sequential stages, and we

usually begin with adolescents using tobacco and alcohol, and

| progressing up to marijuana, and with some high-risk adolescents

going on to take on additional drugs such as cocaine, heroin,
speed, some of those types of drugs. Primarily most of the
adolescents are heavily involved with alcchol and marijuana.

The second thing that I think we need to keep im’mind as
you plan programs is that adolescent alcchol and drug abuse has
multiple causes, with risk for adolescent abuse increasing
according to the risk factors. And for some of the youths in
California, they may have more risk factors than other youths.
When we talk about risk factors, we have to talk about
sociceconomic levels; we have to talk about issues such as the

environment that they live in, theix family situations; we also




LA

6

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

I 70
i

|

i
H

fzhave to talk about cdmmunity situations, and we do have to talk
;gabout an opportunity structure and opportunity to see that
Ej‘there's a chance to have jobs, et cetera, et cetera.

The third piece 0f research that I think we have to pay
gattention to is that adolescent alcohol and drug abuse serves
' multiple functions, and that there's not any one particular
| reason that young people may becoming involved with chemicals,

and that we often spend a great deal of time trying to define

that one reason to come up with just one solution. I think that

lwe need to accept the fact that it's multiple functions, that

with different kids in different communities and the different

| groups, it serves a number of functions and they always are not
‘the same. This is why I commented that I think we sometimes have
trouble trying to understand why some kids in certain communities
itever would become involved in chemicals versus kids in another
lcommunity. Some may seem much easier to understand than éthers,
but I think the point is that there's a number of reasons why
young people become involved in chemicals.

The fourth one is that more and more the data is showing
that adolescent chemical use is becoming a statistically
normative expérience in our culture, and that it is almost
‘becoming normal for kids to become involved in chemicals.’ And I
'think that the commission that was set up by the Attorney General
last vear beared out some of that,; at least the research that was
ydone by Stagler, which shows that more and more it's becoming a

I

icultural.norm for students to become involved with chemicals.
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I think it's important that iﬁ\the five~year Master Plan
that we have the plan in fact and that we begin to look at
coordinating and working together., I think that's going to be
very difficult. I think that we have continuously talked about
coordination for years, and I haven't really seen that many |
efforts which have been beneficial in that way.

What I would suggest is that as a part of this five-vyear
Master Plan, that it becomes a real leadership issue, because I
think the way that we'll coordinate and the way that you'll have
organizations, agencies working together, sharing resources and
not duplicating, and coming together to Jjointly create and fund
programs, will bé because of leadership. &And I do think that
there is some merit in looking at the fact that we have to have
someone involved in the five-year Master Plan who's going to
provide leadership, and it's going to be done to some extent on a
nonpartisan basis.

I'm not so naive as to believe that there won't be some
partisan politics involved, but I think that as much as possible,
we really have to look at being nonpartisan. I think
coordinating efforts at the state, local and federal levels will
go up the tubes because they usually get involved with politics.

There's some other factors that I think we have to loock
at in terms of things that have hindered effective prevention
programming. One piece, much of the prevention programming, and
research and resources have primarily had middle-class focus,
rendering it sometimes inappropriate or ineffective for wider

application. I think that in California, we have to look at this
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issue because I think that most of vou know that our State would

be one o0f the few states that have to come up with a new term for

minority, being that in the California public schools, the
 minorities will soon be majorities. I think that that issue has
;%to be addressed, particularly when we talk about alcohol and drug

Qabuse, and other problems that young people are having; i.e.,

i
1

@school dropout, teen pregnancy and some of those issues.
} This is not to put down that we shouldn't be focusing on
Ethose kinds of issues. This is just to say that we need to
%broaden those opportunities to loock at what works.

|

We have very little understanding of what works in Black

fcommunities, or at least innercity Black communities in terms of

1
| prevention. Very little information when we're talking about
il

h

Hispanics in terms of prevention. We just don't have that
!
it's basically a national issue.

information. It's not something particular to California either;

Secondly, prevention programs have sometimes been too

| symptom-specific versus focusing on anti-social behavior,

;includinq drug-specific program activities as well as teen
i

pregnancy and dropout prevention activities. We have to focus on
alcohol and drugs. That message has to be clear, but there's a

' lot of work that we've done where we need to coordinate and put

it in conjunction with teen pregnancy and with dropout

|

prevention. There are a number of anti-social behaviors that

i .

iwe're addressing in various governmental agencies. These need to
'be combined. We need to begin to focus more on the problems of

adolescents, not just the problems of adolescents when it comes
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to alcohol and drugs, but the problems of adolescents when it
comes to teen pregnancy, the problems of adolescents when it
comes to AIDS and on up. We need to really try and bring some of
those actors together.

School-based programming alone is inadeqguate. It's not
a school problem, although a number of communities believe that
it is. It is a community-wide problem and a society-wide
problem. Therefore, we just can't do programming in the schools
when we think about adolescents. We have to have good
school-based programming, and I think that, generally speaking,
this state is woefully inadeguate when it comes to what's being
done in the schools; but nevertheless, we just can't focus on the
schools. We need to be doing things in the very areas that young
people function in; we need to be looking at these other areas
that they are spending time in. This is going to be even more
true because we have more kids who are leaving school because of
teen pregnancy, and we're having more kids who are leaving school
because they're dropping out. So if we expect to reach kids on
alcohol and drug abuse through schools, we're going to lose a lot
of kids.

The one other problem that I think that we have to look
at is the ongoing problem of the acceptability of alcohol use
versus the unacceptability of drug use in bur society, and that
in some families and communities it may be okay to use alcohol
but not okay to use other drugs, i.e., mariijuana. Yet alcohol‘is

a part of the sequential stages of adolescent chemical use.
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We have to begin to be as cconcerned about alcohol as we
axre about drug pushers ard scrme of the pecple selling craeck., 1
nealt, it ig as important, particularly when we telk about
sucvlescents, because very few kids start sﬁoking joints, and very

few kids start using cocaine. What most kids begin to do is,

they use alcoboi and then they move on to the other drugs. Very

few kids begin to use marijuana, or begin te use cocaine, and I'm

talking about the most hard-core neighberhocds that we have in

this state.

We alsc need to begin to lock at the tact that using
prevention programs only targeted at adolescents, we need to

begin to develup scme proegrems that will also target adulte froum

twe standpoints: one, their own use, their own consumption; and

Etwo, liow they're looked on as rolé models. This is particularly
true for people who are in professicunal posgitions.

RAcgair, I'm not suggesting that 1L yoﬁ work with young
pecople you should he a teetotaler or whatever, but I'm suggesting
that we need to begin to help our adults understand the role that
they play in terms of what kids sce and how kids respond to some
ol what they see adults doing.

The other one is -- the last one is a major issuc Lo nme
t can hinder programminog, the lack cf professional development

for preventicn professionais, such ae cracuate studies and

ongoirg carcer opportunities. There's very lew training

mechanisms in this state that, whether we're talking about cchool

districts that may need help andé needs to bave teachers trained,
or wvhether we're talking about judces «s was mentioned earlier,

this state hat very 1ittle mechanisms for trairirg pecple.




10

It

12

13

14

5

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

75

I think that one of the things that’we can begin to do
is to not treat this problem of alcochol and drug abuse like it's
going to go away in a few years, as we're just trying to winter
through the storm by saying things. are going to get better.
That's not the situation.

The realities are that we will be dealing with this
problem in third or fourth five-year Master Plans, that it is
just not going to go away; and so we need to equip our agencies
and our State to get ready for a long haul and address the
problem consistently over ten or fifteen years. Not this up and
down.

We got real excited last summer because with alcohol and
drug abuse, and we went crazy, and all kinds of things were being
done, and then it starts slowing back down. We need to have an
ongoing consistent effort, and I think that the five-year Master
Plan concept will do.

I want to talk about it because that's essentially what
this committee is about, and that is we have to begin to
coordinate, and we have to begin to interest key players and
individuals up and have them link up and have them work together.
And that's been a major problem. This committee’s trying to
address that.

The recommendations that I have, and they're kind of
broad recommendations but I think that they fit right into a
five-year plan. The first one is that we have to look at quality
control efforts for current prevention programs. I think that

often because we treat this as something that's not going to be
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larcund ifor @ while, that we treat this as primarily something

that can be done without volurteers. We don't provide resources

lto help people in maragement, prevention programs, skili
ﬁd@ve]opmcnt in terms of areas that will help malirtain prcgrams
%Oth a long period of time.

I won't speak to it by name, but there's a clasegic
feyamp]o in this state where a program that hes gottern a great

degree of national notoriety basically is almost out of businesc

%and is struggling to stay in cxistence, and T think partly it's

becaucr we leok at people having skills in alcchol and drug

buee, but we forget that organizeticone have to have the same
‘ﬂlnu of skills, or alcohol and drug prevention organizations have
to have the same kind of skillthhaﬁ any organizations have.
;They have to have skills in iund‘raising, skills in menacement,
Eskjiis in program planning, skills iﬁ evaluation, other kinds of
things that need to he done to vuu aﬁ organization. And oiten
people who are doing some crime prevention work have rot had
those kind of kackarourds, so guality control, T think, is real
important.

Thie other thirc that is important for us is that we have

oy

a tendency that somwebodv shares an ldea we like, we go,

t'e duplicate

o

T

ﬁﬁmn'whee, thav's a great idea. Let's do it and 1
it." 2Ard cften those programs are not develcped cn sound theory.
j;']“hc»\,f're developed on things that people get off on and enjcy
people doing or seeing pecople do, but they are not based on any

: 3
)

kind of data, and thev arep't meraced ir ary ¥kinc

th

cf way that irp

the Long term is going to have resulte. Ve gel into fads when we
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talk about programs. Somebody comes along with a new school
curriculum, and we go crazy for about six months until we find
out that it's not that good. A bunch of people spending lots of
money on it, so we need to look at quality control.

I think the five-year Master Plan could address that by
having criteria.

Coﬁducting more programming for all youth within the
varied arenas, I've already mentioned that. I think it's
important that we look at relating and becoming more involved
through processes that would help the churches, that would help
other agencies, youth agencies, probation, et cetera, become mére
involved and more knowledgeable.

Someﬁimes we don't need to do anything other than just
help those people become more knowledgeable about adolescent
chemical use and the problems and the stages of it.

We need to place more emphasis on the development of
non-school prevention programs. We need to institute more
programs which target adults, and then we need to establish some
mechanisms for program development.

A couple of other things again, and I really emphasize
it, I think that the five-year management plan is going tc be |
successful, your five-~year Master Plan is going to be successful.
I think that in many ways it will become an issue of leadership.

I heard a question asked of the previous speaker, and
that was something related to teachers,

My experience in working with teachers across the

country is that while they may be reluctant at times to become
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involved in alcohol and drug abuse and to take on more

' responsibilities, often that's because the leadership in the

school or the comﬁunity is not making it a priority and they feel
like they're being dumped on. Certainly when they, like, go to a
board meetiﬁg and see what programs are being addressed, if they
are invelved in alcohol and drug abuse, and being asked to do
more around that area, and they see no commitment coming from the
board, or see no commitment coming from the State or from the

county department of education, of course they're going to feel

like they're being dumped on, and they're going to find ways not

A

to become involved.
My experience is that when you have a process where you
work with teachers and the school leadership, and you get them

involved along with local law enforcement and other community-

based people, you can do a number of things in a school district
jand you can do it without spending lots of money, but it comes
down to a leadership issue. |

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you very much, Mr. League.

; Before we get to questions, I'd like to recognize

'Assemblywoman Jackie Speier who has joined us. She represents

Tnorthern San Mateo County, and she is a member of the Assembly

i
i

fSelect Committee on Youth and Drug Prevention. We welcome you.
| Question, Mr. Ryan.

MR. RYAN: Mr. League, I've known you for ten or twelve
fyears.

| MR. LEAGUE: Right.
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MR. RYAN: ©Nearly every RFP, federal program, state
program that I have read or been involved with for the last 10-12

vears has had a component that says that you are to receive these

| monies, you shall coordinate with, and it lists off all these

I agencies, and you shall have a committee to do whatever,

It doesn't seem to work. It's a good idea. We ali need
to focus on our target audiences and target groups. There are
communities where it works.

Why doesn't it work?

MR. LEAGUE: Well, I think one of the reasons that it
doesn't work, and I may be oversimplifying, but agaiﬁ I think
that it becomes‘a leadership issue. I think that when someone in
your community, whether it's the mayor or whether it's the
superintendent of schools, takes it and looks at it from that
standpoint, and brings the correct people together to begin to
coordinate, it can work.

My experience is that usually it’s not clear that
there's a lead agency, or that someone has taken that leadership,
and everybody delegates their third or fourth -- you know, we
don't have even captains or lieutenants being delegated; we've
got sergeants and corporals being delegated, who usually can't
make decisions in the meetings. After a while we stop coming to
the meetings, and usually it's the best thing that we have going
for us is that we have new friends on the telephone that we can
call up to do something with. I really look at it as a

leadership issue.
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The other issue is that I very seldom see a plan that's

| for coordination that has a real solid plan. I've been on

' numerous coordinating committees. I'm very active in Oakland,

coordinating group, and when it comes to the prevention and
education part of that committee, which I have been very active

in, it's not real clear on where we're trying to go and what

iwe're trying to do. It is real easy with law enforcement,

because that's a little bit more different when we talk about
dealing with the Supply side. But when the council begins to

deal more with prevention, that committee I would have to say, we

idon't know where we're trying to go.

I think that part of it is because, again, it's a

i leadership issue, and people got more into the supply side of it

‘and kind of have prevention as the afterthought.

MR. RYAN: Perhaps more than just a recommendation or
requirement that there be coordination, more so that there be
strategies for how to sustain and provide for that type of
collaboration.

MR. LEAGUE: And you say to folks that vou'’ve got two
months to develop a solid coordinating plan. Like, usually an

RFP is the proposal or the applications. They say "coordinating"

%but you really don't have to put together a solid plan to allow

people to say we'‘re going to work with these organizations. We
never talk about how, when and what that relationship's going to
look 1like.

Secondly, I think that people need help on how to

develop those relationships. Whenever you pull two or three
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organizations together,, that's not easy. 8o, I think that often
it becomes a skill issue, too, as well as just a leadership or
sometimes a partisan politics issue.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Any questions from Senator Morgan or
Assemblywoman Speier?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SPEIER: I was particularly interested in
your comment regarding the sequential use of chemicals.

We have a fact sheet that I guess was developed by the
California Attorney General, among others, which shows that 51
percent of California's 11th graders have tried illicit drugs by
the age of 16; a 300 percent increase in the use of cocaine.

Are you suggesting, then, that our focus is somewhat
misdirected in terms of some of the more elaborate drugs that are
being used by young people, and that earlier on we should have a
heavier focus on the use of alcohol?

MR. LEAGUE: Absolutely. I think that when you're
talking‘about first, second, third, and fourth graders, it's not
too early to begin to address the issue of, of course,
cigarettes, which most people do, and alcohol. And I think that
by the fourth grade, kids should be involved with having some
direct information about alcohol use, because almost all the
research that I've looked at, and that includes the research
being done by the folks down at USC, that talks about the
sequential stages of drug use, more and more that gateway theory,
of which initially I wasn’t that sold on but over the last two or
three years I have grown into believing that it really is a

theory we need to look at and spend more time with, yes.
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN SPEIER: Do you feel that within our

"curriculum schools now are addressing that at all?

MR. LEAGUE: I think some of the curriculums that are

being developed now are beginning to, but when I look at

" California schools, I personally believe that California schools

. are not nearly as strong as they need to be in curriculum. So,

. in general, the curriculums are problematic, let alone

specifically around the drugs and alcohol for younger kids.

I also think we need to begin to do some things in

? preschool as much as possible to focus on Head Starts and other

programs. And secondly, when you have kids who are 1lth and 12th
graders, our energies probably shouldn't be so much to focus on

their use as much as their role as parents, and begin to give

| them information that's going to be useful for them four, five,

or six, seven years when they'start making babies.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SPEIER: One last question.

You make reference to much of the prevention programming
being developed around a middle-class model, and in fact there is
very little around lower economic strata.

MR. LEAGUE: Correct.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SPEIER: What would you suggest as an
alternative to that?

MR. LEAGUE: Well, I think that the Master Plan that
you're talking about would have a component that would
specifically want to look at alcthl and drug abuse prevention
from the standpoint of other groups of people, and that would

include minorities as well as the people in different social and
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economic levels. I think with the diversity in California,

you've got to look at, for example, people who live in some of
the rural areas and particularly in places where many of them
justify the growing of marijuana as an economic kind of issue.

I think the Master Plan would have a piece that speaks
specifically to special populations as you get in to do more
research and work with special populations.

’CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Mr. Dugan has the last question.

MR. LEAGUE: I also want to say to you, because I know
you're with the Attorney General, one of the things I say in the
written testimony is that I think this committee should really
look at the Attorney General's recommendations because I think
some of the things that they recommended really have relevance to
this committee.

MR. DUGAN: Thank you very much.

I wanted to make one comment, Jackie, and that is that
alcohol is the drug of choice that is among the kids. That is
the overall drug of choice.

But I would like for you to comment because you went
over it guickly, a resource center, and frankly, it happens to be
some kind of a wvery important notion of mine. 'That is, there
doesn't seem to be any place for education to go to get what they
need.

MR. LEAGUE: Yeah. 1In Illinois, the company that I work
for, we, for the last six years, have ran {[sic] the Illinois
Prevention Resource Center. And what it is, it's a center that's

open. We run it out of Springfield and Chicago, and educators




10

11

12

13

14

Is

16

17

18

i9

20

21

23

24

25

26

28

B ’
i 84

?and all other organizations in the State have resources, have the
fopportunity to use it.
| For example, if you have a 4-H group, and you're looking
to do prevention, énd you have a mandate to do prevention, you
could come to the Prevention Resource Center. As I mentioned
earlier, there's over 6,000 pieces of material that you could
use, including film, videos, books. We are a full- fledged
public library.

Secondly, we provide training and technical assistance
on a request basis.
Thirdly, we take things out into the State. - Right now,
:for almost every week, we're doing a prevention orientation
someplace. We also do other types of training. We've done lots
of training with’cultures. For example, in Salinas we've done a
' lot of training with working with cultures. In the State of
'Illinois, we develop programs, policies, and what have you.
So, it serves as a comprehensive unit for the State of

Illinois, and like I say, we've been doing it for about seven

%years, and it has made lots of difference in terms of people
|

saying, "Where can I get help if I want to do something?"

i
i
i
i

Also, all the parent qroupé have used it, and have used
fit as a measure Or a means for‘developing some of their
imateriaés.

| CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you very much for your

| testimony.

MR. LEAGUE: Thank you.
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CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Our next witness is Mr. Paul DePace,
who represents Southland Corporation, or more popularly knownAas'
Seven-Eleven Stores.

MR, DePACE: Thank you, Chairman Seymour, Select
Committee and distinguished panel. |

My name is Paul DePace. I'm a Zone Manager for the
Southland Corporation, or more commonly known to you as the
Seven-Eleven food stores.

I'd like to thank you for the opportunity of inviting
our corporation to come down here today to give you some
testimony.

I'm primarily involved in the overseeing of a portion of
our franchise system in Southern California. As the nation's
largest franchise store and operator of convenience stores, our
corporation takes a lot of pride in its track record of
involvement with government and community in addressing social
concerns and challenges.

We are, of course, known for our charitable work with
the March of Dimes and Muscular Dystrophy. In féct, we've given
over $50 million to those organizations.

However, we're also highly involved in the substance
abuse arena. We have actively supported Mothers Against Drunk
Driving and Californians for a Drug-Free Youth, monetarily or
through their support of Red Ribbon Week in their efforts to
present a united front against substance abuse.

Of particular note are two programs we're involved in

that directly affect today's youth. I brought along a little bit
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fof material. Cne is our Céme‘of Age program, which we desicrned
ffor implementatior in our stcres. This is arn iliusgtration of an
ad which we placed in U.S.A. Today, ard here is an example of a
ﬁpcint of sale that we have up in our stores relative to the
?responsﬁble csale of alcoholic beverages tc mincrs.

f Obviouslv, as the leader in the retail industry, we are
fvery concerned that our stovres, Tranchisees and employees are

knowledgeable and sensitive about respensible retailing of

ialcoholic beverages. The Come cf Age program is designed
preciiically to allow our f{ranchisees end their employees to not
xon}y know the law, but ke able to become experts in judging ages
?OF individuals ottempting tc buy alcohcoiic beverages, erd zlsc in
iﬁuiéirq therm in ways to refuse sensiﬁlve sale cituations that
 they may get into at the sales couunter.

| We've done extensive advertising campaigns, and we've
aloe sent out a number, literally thoucaends of them in fact, of
ﬁpackcts te local high schools describing hiow cur progoyam is a
ﬁroqram that they can uvtiiize in their schools. I have aun

example of the packet that we send out here. I have several more

back et my seat for anyone desiring to get one. Just see e

¥

’after the meeting; vou're certainly welcome to it.

One other program that we're involved in is callecd
‘@pefation Prom Graduation, originally kind of the idea of Narcy
ﬁcagan, Cur corpcration was happy to underwiite 1t along with
’NADD, Mothers Pgainst Drunk Driving, acaip, and the National
’?ederal of Parents for & Drug-Free Youth, which really did the

spearhead work, and we basically drew the money and we're happy

o de rthat.
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We sent tens of thousands of copies to high schools
across the United States. It's basically a guide to holding a
graduation or a prom party in an alcohol or drug-free atmosphere.
It gives the high school the direction in setting up, sponsoring
and doing it. I brought along an example I had of one of the
folders we had printed, and I do have some extras also. If you'd
like to take one of these, I'd be happy to let you have that.

We also augmented that with yet another ad in U.S.A.
Today, which you see here. You can see it has a little
application in the corner so if anyone wanted to clip that out
and send it in, they could certainly get more information on that
out of that ad.

So, you can see that work in this area is not new to our
company. Most recently, we're very privileged to be entertained
as the sponsor for a substancé abuse drug prevention video which
Senator Seymour alluded to earlier. In fact, it was his idea
along with a vice principal at a school in his area. They came
up with the idea of creating a video to be available and utilized
by public youth categories relative to substance abuse. It's
about a 25~minute video. It's currently being filmed with a
couple of major stars from T.V., Elissa Milano from "Who's the
Boss", and Pat Peterson from "Knot's Landing”. It involves teens
talking to teens primarily. 1It's targeted for a junior'or>senior
high school student, and we're making both an English and a
Spanish version. The Spanish version is going to be =-- I'm
trying to think of the word -- not only starring, but the

overspeaking on the version is going to be done by Edward James
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folmos who's from "Miami Vice". BAs I said, the filming's underway

| in Senator Seymour's area. We expect to have it completed by the

end of the summer for distribution in the early part of the

i school year.

Shortly, briefly, not being an expert in the field, what
can industry do in the type of environment we're talking about?
They can assist in carrying out the designs of experts such as
yourself, but basically time, energy, and money. I think that's
the role that we need to play.

A lot of private industry corporations have the vehicles

available; obviously the monetary funds are there to be prorated

L appropriately for programs like this. Southland is particularly

involved, obviously, as the leader in the retailing industry and
necessari;y S0.

We understand and appreciate the challenges faced by
many in today's social environment. We work in’that environment,
particularly youth. We're not afraid to commit resources to

serious and difficult issues. I don't think we've ever tried to

‘dodge serious issues in terms of sensitivity.

In order to mold positive social values, a united front

lof expert citizens, responsive government, and private industry

is essential. We're very proud of our involvement thus far, and

we'd like you to know that it's been on an ongoing basis. We're

.not a fair-weather player in this arena, and we're happy to be

lentertained on an ongoing basis in all our localities.

So again, I appreciate the opportunity to come down here

today, and I'd be happy to entertain any guestions.
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CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you, Mr. DePace.

Senator Morgan.

SENATOR MORGAN: Mr. DePace, what percentage or what
numbers of high schools do you think now have gotten your
material or are participating in a substance-free prom weekend?

MR. DePACE: Other than, vou know, oné or two that might
have slipped between the cracks, we've made an effort to send one
to literally every high schocl in the United States.

SENATOR MORGAM: Do you have any feedback here within
California about a follow-up to that, and whether the parents and
schools are getting involved to plan for that kind of a
celebration as opposed to the cther?

I appreciate and commend your efforts, but what's the
follow-up?

MR. DePACE: Well honestly, from our standpoint in my
particular area, I think the onus is on our individual management
in each given locale to check on the progress that we're making,
so we're simply not mailing out a package, forgetting about it.
We're following up, vou know, with the schools in our particular
area.

My area is primarily the north Los Angeles area, San
Fernando Valley; I alsc handle Santa Barbara and up the coast a
little bit and on up towards Bakersfield. And our individual
district managers in those areas are very involved locally, and
we have had some very good success stories.

Not every school's §®ing one, but we do some follow=-up
and try to assist them if there's any misinterpretation about the

packages, et cetera. We've been very happy with the results.
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I'm not really in a position to speak for the entire

country, obviously.

SENATOR MORGAN: I'm only interested in California

' today.

MR. DePACE: Sure. If there is a high school in, you

zknow, in anyone's area that would be interested in these kind of

fpackets, you feel maybe it might have slipped through the cracks

in a particular area, and you'd like additional copies or
whatever, we're certainly in a position to do that for you. And
I have some business cards. You know, if you're not in my

particular area, then certainly you can contact me or tell me to

give you a call, or whatever. 1I'd be happy to follow up on that

for you.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you. Sharon Rose.

MS. ROSE: I would just like to help answer that.

As a board member for’the National Federation of Parents
for a Drug-Free Youth, I can’tell yvou that we as parents in every
community where we speak, we bring up the graduation party and
give out the literature. BAnd I know a number of schools in
California who have started all-night grad parties and have
drug-free prom parties.

So, I think that it's all working together. We
complement each other's programs.

Your literature is very helpful to us.

MR. DePACE: That's nice to hear.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Other questions?

Mr. DePace, thank you very much.
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MR. DePACE: Thank vyou very much for your time. I
appreciate it.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Our next witness is Mr. Delvin
Williams, Executive Director of Pros for Kids,

Delvin, thank you for taking the time to be with us.
Good to see you again.

MR, WILLIAMS: 1It's good to see vou, Senator. It's a
pleasure to be here,

I'm particulafly pleased to share in today's hearing
because 1 think I've always been an advocate that if we're going
to do anything about this problem, we have to look at it from a
long-range perspective, and we have to get in the saddle and get
ready to ride it for a long time because it's not a problem that
has dropped out of the sky overnight, as some people believe that
it has, and it'1l go away the same way. It's a problem that has
been with us for generations upon generations. It's a problem
that we've seen alcoholics in our families and we've not -- we've
closed our eyes and leave them in the corner. As long as they
have their drink, they'll leave us alone and they're okay.

So, we're finding out more information now about the
long-range effects of that in terms of ATA, Adult Treatment of
Alccholics, and the problem that that's put on our society.

I'm particularly happy to be here to take part in this.
I'm having some problems here in keeping my notes coordinated.
I've got a lot.

But for the, I guess, for the sake of being repetitious,

after hearing Mr. League speak, I think he touched on a lot of




"
A

veryv good areas, and some of the wrees that I have in mine. So 1
wor 't belabor some of those points,

But I'd like tc start out by introducing mysell to some

v. the mermbers that may not be too familiar with what we're doing

11 Pros for Kids, what we're about. Pros for Kids was started

about four years age, five years ago, by myselt and Larry Shriver
to look at some of the‘problems of substance abuse, particularly
fa2ced by athletes, and what we can do tce help kids. And over the
post three or four vears, we've evolved irom a community-based

organization toe & statewide organization, thanks to Senator

Seymour, Asserblyman Agnosg, and a piece ¢f legislation that was
coauthored, to use athletes in the echools as positive role

LoLE LS,

Cver the last year or so, we've -- last two years, we've
designed a curriculum. The curriculum was designed by a cchool
teacher who toock a leave ¢if absence, is now on our staff, ard has
written a curriculum that was endorsed by the California Teachers
Association as well as the Department'ci Education and many other

agencies that we now, for the first year, have just used in

schocls.

Some of the reports that we've gotten back from that,
twe principals have told us -~ the Principal of Admissions, San
Jose high Scheol and Pittsburg Hich Scheool, tcold us for the first
vear, for the first fime That they can remember that there was
not any aleochel-relieted problems at graduaticr in the two
schools. And they have perscnalily teld us that they think that
:unr proaram had an impact on that. &o, we're very happy to hear

thet information.




10
11

12

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

93

But some of the things that I think that we need to do
-~ I want to backtrack a little bit. There's a bill out now,
Assembly Bill 134, that I'd like also to commend Assemblyman
Clute on because it also addresses. the problem from a long~range
perspective. And there were a lot of things in the legislation
that I think were good, but there are four things that I pulled
ocut that I'd just like to bring up.

One was the drug and alcohol abuse prevention education
at all levels. I don't think that any level should be
Qverlooked, from elementary school on to even till they graduate
from college, because some of the problems that we're seeing
today, particularly in college athletes with drug problems and
steroids, a lot of that is coming from a lack of knowledge and a
lack of institutional responsibility for the problems. We've all

put it on the individuals, but institutions have not addressed

vit. So, I think this is going to address those issues.

The guidelines for prevention curriculum in selection of
materials I think is very important, that we're real selective
about the information and the materials that we design and give
to kids.

The establishment of prevention resourée centers for the
schools and implementation. There's a lot of schools out there
that have the desire and want to do things, but they don't know
where to go to get the help. 8o if there is a rescurce center,
which Mr. League also touched on, I think there is a way to

coordinate all the efforts, bring the people together.
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There's a problem that we're facing as an organization

in line with this, is that it's a good problem, in that we've got

: a gentleman who has been so generous as to donate 1100 acres of

land to us in St. Helena in Napa Valley, and 250 acres of it is

. flat land, where we can do some things. Where do we go as an

iorqanization to find out who we can coordinate with to make this
a viable program,for the State, for all kids, for all people?

And we're real frustrated with trying to do that as a community-
based organizétion trying to deliver a étate prbg:am with demands
on us from other cities and states around the country for

support, when we have something in our backyard. Where do we go

fwithin the State agencies and organizations to try and develop

this land into a resource?

And finally on Assemblyman Clute's bill, the curriculum
framework at each grade level for health and science involved
comprehensive instruction on abuse and prevention. I think
that's very important. I know for me as a pegson, having been a

substance abuser myself, that there was never at any level in my

tuse of drugs where I could have gone to get any proper

‘informaticn other than my friends, and they didn't know any more

about it than I did. So I think that we have to create an

1atmospbere where we can go as students, kids, adults and parents,
‘can go to a library or in the school to get that information.

j I think there has to be something as well for, as Mr.
League also touched on, you're going to hear a speaker today who
I think will put it very succinctly, Dr. Darryl Inaba from Haight

Ashbury Free Clinic. They've been doing this for 20 years, and
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he's got a lot of resource information. But Darryl has developed
a cultural model at the Haight, particularly here in San

' Francisco, that knows the drug of choice for each ethnic group,
and why, and so forth.

So, I think we have to be able to coordinate with
agencies within, particularly like the Haight that's been there
for 20 years, with mounds and mounds of data to put in a resource
center, in a library, to develop some of that, to train some of

the teachers, and parents, and kids.

We put a lot of emphasis on kids and on users, but we

fhaven‘t addressed the problems from a parent's perspective, from

a teacher's perspective, because I know I've talked to some kids,

and they sit and tell me about how their parents or someone tried

to talk to them about drugs, and they know more about the drugs
than their parents, or than the teachers. And so that's a big
gap that we have that those of us that want to teach the kids
don't have as much information as the kids about drugs. So I
think we have to try to coordinate all of those and make sure
that there is a =-- within that rescurce center, there is a place

for parents, for teachers, to train them specifically around the

iproblems of alcohcl and drugs, because we're losing -- the gap of
i

]communicatisn is widening between the users and institutions
because the delivery mechanism is not of a nature that can
clearly articulate the program with kids.

There is alsoc == I had an opportunity to moderate a
panel that Assemblyman Bates had here on the changing family in

ithe year 2000. And there were eleven kids -~ eight kids on the
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~panel -- ten kids on the panel. And their topics ranged from

dropout, to teen pregnancy, to just a wide variety of things.

But there were two things that stuck out in my mind that
I think really affirms some of -- reaffirms some of the feeling
that I have of why the problem began, and also that I thought
gave a real clear message to the people. dne was that one kid
mentioned ﬁhat their self-esteem is affected, that most minority
kids®' self-esteem is affected simply =- particularly if they're
not an English-speaking student and they don't have access to the
educational system. We're talking about reading, writing, math
and all the basic things that these kids don't have access to

which affects their self-esteem. They get disinterested in

. school and have a tendency to drop out. It's not that they don't

‘have the desire; it's that they don't have the mechanisms to

learn. So, there's been a real gap there in the educational
institutions to meet those needs of kids.
There was one kid that talked about, she was a Laotian

kid, and she was the only one in her family that spoke English.

‘And she would take her parents around and would have to read for

them. So she didn't have -- she was not allowed the opportunity

' to have an education, and a lot of that leads to drug use and
Labuse when there's a lot of stress on young kids, 12 and 13 vyear

'old kids, that don't have an opportunity to become educated.

I may be kind of drifting off a little bit, but these

are some of the things that I think are very important that over

jthe last few years that we'‘ve come to -~ come in contact with.

|
j
|
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T think there's a lack of coordination on a local level

' in terms of from county-funded programs as opposed to noncounty-

funded programs. Example is that if there’s a county prevention
program that they monitor and oversee, that there's not much
close working relationship with those that are not county-funded.
S0, it's hard to coordinate all those efforts and to know what's
being done, and we're duplicating efforts. So I think it's very
important that we look at that. |

It's very clear, though, that on a Statewide level, that
we're starting to move towards this way. All the departments on
the State level are coordinating, as Mr. League said earlier, not
from the two or three persons remcoved level, but from the highest
levels to hopefully creste an agenda together that each one will
vigorously work towards seeing that it gets accomplished. I
think that's very important.

There's a thing that I'm real -~ 15 a real sore spot
with me, and that's from my days of playing, and that's looking
at the problem in Qréfessisnal sports. There's a lack of
institutional responsibility for the problem of substance abuse,.
When I say that, I look at all of the institutions in the
country, and some of our great institutions, particularly the
clergy, I have not over the last three or four years heard anyone
tfrom the clergy take a real hard stand on substance abuse. I
have not heard anyone from a level of sports to take a real hard
stand and get behind it and say, "Probably what we're doing may
be part of the problem." You know, "What can we do to help avoid

the problem?”
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Example in the clergy, I've not heard any of our great

| leaders speak to this issue with constituents. I've not heard
' them incorporate -- talk about incorpofating into their sermons,

i into Bible studieé; into schools, into whatever areas that they

have access to. When you have thousands and thousands of people
coming to church every Sunday looking for direction, and our
great leaders have not tried to impact their followers from this
| perspective. And I think this is an area that we have not
dabbled into. Regardless of what our religious beliefs are,
there's a lot of people that do believe, that have some kind of
spiritual belief. So, we need to try to focus on coordinating,
getting those leaders to institute something in their sermons
about thié.

I fhink on the level of‘sports, which I have felt a
little bit ffustrated with, is in using athletes as positive role
models in schools, and I haven't gotten the kinds of support that
I would like to have from professional sports organizations.
Particularly here in California, where there are more sports
organizations here than anywhere in the country, I think there's
15, and I don't have access to those. I don't have a medium to
get to the owners of those teams and say, "This is what we're
doing; how can you help us? How can we bring all of the
resources aﬁd the powers that be together to impact this
{problem?" So, that's a real sore spot with me in trying to, over
:the last two years, three years in this‘area, to get total
support from those entities. There are some that help, but not

'all, but there are some that are very supportive. But how do we
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-~ how do I, as an individual, use a mechanism that's there to
access those institutions to help support our program?

So, there's a lot of things that I think I could comment
on,’but V.C. League has; vou'll hear from Dr. Inaba; you'll hear
from a lot of other organizations and people that will touch on
some real specific things, so I don't want to belabor the point.
You'll hear a lot of this throughout the day.

Any questions that you have I'll be more than happy to
answer.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you very much, Delvin.

Senator Morgan.

SENATOR MORGAN: On your last point of saying the owners
of teams getting together and focusing on this more, because I
think vou're right. The only area that professional sports
people have focused is what Ueberroth has done in baseball.

How can Legislators help you with this?

MR, WILLIAMS: Well, I‘think that I would like to sit
down with'Legislatcrs and those that are in the areas of
professional teams and explain to them what we're doing, what our
needs are, and what those teams can do to help us.

I never realized how much of an impact I had on kids
until I was done playing football, until it was too late. But I
think irrespective of what we think about what athletes should
do, they are role models, and they do have an impact no matter
how minimal the amcount of time it is that they're used.

Sc I would like to sit down and in cooperation and

explain to a group of Legislators just how professional teams can
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. be more effective in helping their communities and this great

State to prevent substance abuse.

SENATOR MORGAN: 1'd liké to encourage you to start with
one geographical area, either Senator Seymour's or mine, for
instance, and get some Legislators to appear in our same area and
start with the teams in one geographical area rather than trying
to do the whole State. But whether it's a letter that we sign
together to setting up a meeting like that or whatever, I'd like
to offer my participation in helping you that way.

MR. WILLIAMS: I would be more than happy to do that. I
will contact each of you at your offices to try to set a meeting
up with you.

SENATOR MORGAN: I have just a second guestion.

Having talked recently with one of the doctors for
another football team other than the one you were affiliated
with, who was talking about the decrease in funding, particularly
in the Peninsula for our schools with the declining enrollments,

they've had to drop a lot of their sports programs. They had the

' sports programs coached by volunteers in many cases, and what

that‘s'done to the attention to medical needs of the players.

I'm wondering if that alsc spills over to the extent

that coaches give attention to drug and alcohol abuse among their

players, or is it even worse than it used to be with using
volunteers in sports programs?

MR. WILLIAMS: I think that makes it much worse than =--
if vou get a walk-on coach that comes on, and that doesn't relate

to the kids, that's not there with the kids throughout the school
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day, does not understand the personal problems a kid may have,
that it really broadens the gap of communication there. So, the
walk-on coach is dealing with a kid with not enough information
about what his problem may be at home, or his problem may be in
school, but they're coming in and trying to impose upon him
certain rules and directions and guidelines,

I think with decreased funding, it's really affected
sports programs. I think that there has to be a broader training
program, not only for walk-on coaches but for coaches that are
there all the time. There are some coaches that have been at
schools for 20 years, and their whole:approach has not changed in
20 years. So, that has an effect on the information that's
disseminated to kids. And kids see that what worked in the late
'50s or mid-60s won't work in the mid-80s. And those coaches are
still using those techniques, and that broadens the gap.

So, there has to be =-- one particular incident that I
think a lot of those coaches are not really participating in
sports, they're just walk-on coaches that read a book, passed a
test and now theybcan coach. So the problem there becomes -- I
know that part of the problem with substance abuse in sports is
that there is a build-up from Monday to Saturday, Friday,
Saturday and Sunday to peak for a game on Sunday or Saturday,
whenever. So after the game is over with, and the crowd stops
roaring, then he can't turn off that adrenaline flow in one hour
when he takes his helmet off. And then we have a tendency to let
the kids go after the game, while he's still high emotionally,

and they'll go out and they'll want to reproduce that. They want

to celebrate.
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But we haven't utilized the resources here to train

%coaches on how to deal with kids after games, and how to deal

- with the build-up every game and to bring them down, because

| that's where the potential substance abuse is in sports. Not

only oﬁ a professional level, just in sports with the build-up
and then juSt let them down. And there's not a slow come-down.
So on every level, high school, college and pros, that's
a problem. If we don't train the coaches to make sure that
they're better prepared to handle that, we'll have lost a lot
more athletes.
CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you, Senator Morgan.

Assemblywoman Speier.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SPEIER: Delvin, you had mentioned your
1100 acres in St. Helena, I guess, that's been given to Pros for
Kids.

MR. WILLIAMS: We've =-- as the gentleman that made that
contribution said last year when we talked back and forth, he's
now signed a letter of intent for a year to give us some time to
look at developing it and coming up with a plan for it. And upon
coming up with a plan, then he will donate it to us for a dollar
a year for the next 20 years. And if it works, 1f we do some

good things with it, then he's not opposed to making an outright

'contribution after the 20 years or even before that.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SPEIER: And what do you envision on that
*250 acres?
MR. WILLIAMS: 1I'd like to see -- just off the top --

there's a lot of things that we've dealt with, but to take off on
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AB 2126, because after the third year's over, we'd like to use
that as a training center to continue to develop curriculum, to
continue to train parents and teachers; to also use that as a
summer area for camps and for kids. We run summer camps now
throughout Northern California, where they're academic and
athletic, and kids spend a half day in a classroom and half a day
on the field. The focus is substance abuse prevention.

I'd like to see us continue that on with the curriculum
that we've developed for AB 2126 to refine that, to continue to
refine that and train parents, teachers,‘and kids on that and
make that just a curriculum development center, training center.

We've also talked about using it as a field trip where
elementary school kids leave —-- used to go on field trips or
outdoor field trips. We'd like to have them come for field trips
on substance abuse throughout the week, and run them there, and
develop the materials in coordination with all the State agencies
to do that.

There is an RFP out now to develop curriculum. I think
it's from the federal level for a million dollars that we would
like to bid on those kinds‘of proposals‘and develop that, have
that as a constant, ongoing development center. And to also méke
it into -~ that there is enough land that you can still have
outdoor trips because there's enough hills, and there is a lake
there that has been used for a lot bf different things. We're
not totally clear yet as to what we want to do because there's so

many options.
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We have people that are willing to donate plans. We've

i got an architect who's willing to donate the plans. We've got

' contractors who are willing to help us, but how do we bring in

all the resources, all of the powers that be to really make this

into a viable center?

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Thank you very much, Delvin. We
appreciate your time and your testimony and your commitment to
this program.

MR. WILLIAMS: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: The next witness is Mr. Gene Upshaw.

Is he here? David Meggyesy.

MR. MEGGYESY: Senator, Gené is not here. He couldn't
make it. |

My name is David Meggyesy, and I'm the Western Director
of the National Football League Players Assoclation. We're the
labor union that represents all the football players in the
National Football League.

The question of substance abuse has certainly been with
us, and some of our membership have beén targets and certainly
focus for the drug question.

What I'd like to talk about a little bit today is,

 address my remarks to the question of substance abuse in the work

place. I've been here most of the morning, and nobody's really

talked about that. We seem to be emphasizing youth, and that

jcertainly is very critical, and to talk a little about what we're

doing in regard to the question of substance abuse in the work

place.
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CHAIRMAN SEYMOUR: Excuse me, Mr. Meggyesy.

I appreciate that, and you're right. But I would hope
that yvou're going to direct this area into the need, and how it's
going to be a component in the Master Plan.

MR. MEGGYESY: We'll get to it.

So, I think we can break that element in, and I want to
talk a little bit about what the players are doing, and what
we're doing as an organizaﬁion to deal with this question.

In our view in the work place, the drug question is a
labor?management issue, that we have seen certainly a numbef of
instances where -- and I'll tell you a little bit of our
situation where, particularly in the National Football League, in
our work place, that we have to deal with the question of
substance abuse, the question of drugs in the broadest possible
sense in the context of the collective bargaining agreement.

We have seen instances in the past where not dealing

with the question in this context has hurt our players and hurt

our membership, so we're very, very sensitive to that.

One thing I want to say is, the National Football League
Players Association, obviously, with many pe